

Report of the Security Council for 2019

General Assembly Official Records Seventy-fourth Session Supplement No. 2





A/74/2

Official Records Seventy-fourth Session Supplement No. 2

Report of the Security Council for 2019



Note

Symbols of United Nations documents are composed of letters combined with figures. Mention of such a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

The resolutions and decisions of the Security Council are published in yearly volumes of *Resolutions and Decisions of the Security Council*.

Contents

Chapter		Page
	Introduction	8
	ating to all questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the of international peace and security	
I.	Resolutions adopted by the Security Council	23
II.	Statements by the President of the Security Council issued	26
III.	Communications from the President of the Security Council or the Secretary-General	27
IV.	Meetings of the Security Council.	35
V.	Meetings of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	59
VI.	Reports of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	63
	A. Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission	63
	B. Annual reports of committees	63
	C. Annual reports of working groups	63
VII.	Reports of panels and monitoring mechanisms	64
VIII.	Reports of Security Council missions	65
IX.	Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated	66
X.	Special political missions established, functioning or terminated	67
XI.	Reports of the Secretary-General.	68
XII.	Summary statements by the Secretary-General of matters of which the Security Council was seized	73
XIII.	Notes by the President of the Security Council issued	74
XIV.	Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council	76
	nsidered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of I peace and security	
1.	The situation in Cyprus.	77
2.	Items relating to the situation in the Middle East	80
	A. The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	80
	B. The situation in the Middle East	83
	1. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force	83
	2. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)	84
	3. Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)	87
	4. Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East	87
	(a) Syrian Arab Republic	87
	(b) Yemen	98

20-09564 3/205

3.	The situation concerning Western Sahara			
4.	United Nations peacekeeping operations.			
5.	The situation in Somalia			
6.	Iten	ns relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia		
	A.	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina		
	В.	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)		
7.	The	question concerning Haiti		
8.	The	situation in Burundi		
9.	The	situation in Afghanistan		
10.	Inte	rnational Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals		
11.	The	situation in the Great Lakes region.		
12.	The	situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo		
13.	The	situation in the Central African Republic.		
14.	Children and armed conflict			
15.	The situation in Guinea-Bissau			
16.	Protection of civilians in armed conflict			
17.	Woı	nen and peace and security		
18.	Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice			
19.	Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe			
20.		eting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to olution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B		
	A.	United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus.		
	B.	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force		
	C.	United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon		
	D.	United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara		
	E.	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo		
	F.	United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic		
	G.	African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur		
	H.	United Nations Mission in South Sudan		
	I.	United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali		
21.	Thr	eats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts		
22.	Brie	efings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council		
2	C ~ ~	urity Council mission		

24.	Central African region				
25.	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction				
26.	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan				
27.	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace				
28.	The	situation concerning Iraq			
29.	Thr	eats to international peace and security			
30.	Noi	n-proliferation			
31.	Peace consolidation in West Africa				
32.	The	situation in Myanmar			
33.	Nor	n-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea			
34.	Mai	intenance of international peace and security			
	A.	General issues			
	B.	Addressing the impacts of climate-related disasters on international peace and security.			
	C.	Transnational organized crime at sea as a threat to international peace and security			
	D.	Conflict prevention and mediation			
	E.	Implementation of the youth, peace and security agenda			
	F.	Challenges to peace and security in the Middle East			
35.	Pea	ce and security in Africa			
	A.	General issues			
	B.	Ebola			
	C.	Partnership to strengthen regional peace and security			
	D.	Mobilizing youth towards silencing the guns by 2020			
	E.	The centrality of preventive diplomacy, conflict prevention and resolution			
	F.	Intercommunal violence and terrorism in West Africa			
36.		peration between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in ntaining international peace and security			
37.	The	situation in Libya			
38.	The	situation in Mali			
39.	Iten	ns relating to Ukraine			
	A.	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council			
	В.	Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council			
40.	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council				
41		situation in the Rolivarian Republic of Venezuela			

20-09564 5/205

Part III Other m		considered by the Security Council	
	1.	Annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly	63
	2.	Items relating to Security Council documentation and working methods and procedure 10	63
		A. Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council (S/2010/507) 10	63
		B. General matters	64
Part IV Report		Military Staff Committee	65
		ght to the attention of the Security Council but not discussed at meetings of the Council riod covered	
	1.	Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question	67
	2.	Communication concerning the Korean peninsula	68
	3.	Communications concerning the letter dated 20 February 1958 from the representative of the Sudan to the Secretary-General	68
	4.	Communication concerning the question of the Greater Tunb, Lesser Tunb and Abu Musa islands	68
	5.	Communications concerning the situation relating to Nagorny Karabakh and relations between Armenia and Azerbaijan	69
	6.	Communications concerning the situation in Georgia	71
	7.	Communications concerning relations between Cameroon and Nigeria	72
	8.	Communication from the Chair of the Coordination Committee of Special Procedures 1	72
	9.	Communications concerning the Collective Security Treaty Organization	72
	10.	Communications concerning the League of Arab States	73
	11.	Communications concerning relations between the Democratic People's Republic of Korea and the United States of America	73
	12.	Communications concerning relations between Djibouti and Eritrea	74
	13.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Israel 1	74
	14.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Saudi Arabia 17	75
	15.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and the United States of America	76
	16.	Communications concerning relations between Qatar and Bahrain, Egypt, the Islamic Republic of Iran, Saudi Arabia, the Syrian Arab Republic and the United Arab Emirates 1	77
	17.	Communications from the Islamic Republic of Iran	78
Append	ices		
	I.	Membership of the Security Council during the year 2019	79
	II.	Representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives accredited to the Security Council	80
	III.		92

IV.	Military Staff Committee		
	A.	Meetings of the Military Staff Committee	193
	B.	Representatives who served on the Military Staff Committee	200
	C.	Chairs of the meetings of the Military Staff Committee	202
	D.	Correspondence sent by the Chair of the Military Staff Committee	203
	E.	Correspondence received by the Chair of the Military Staff Committee	205

20-09564 7/205

Introduction

- Mindful of its primary responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security, the Security Council continued to engage on a widereaching agenda in accordance with the principles and objectives set forth in the Charter of the United Nations. During the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019, the Council held 258 meetings. The Council adopted 52 resolutions and 15 presidential statements and issued 67 statements to the press. During the reporting period, the Council conducted five missions. The Council visited Côte d'Ivoire and Guinea-Bissau in February; Burkina Faso and Mali in March; Iraq and Kuwait in June; Colombia in July; and Ethiopia and South Sudan in October. On 22 October, during the visit to Ethiopia, the Council and the Peace and Security Council of the African Union held their thirteenth annual joint consultative meeting, which was focused on the Central African Republic, Libya, South Sudan and the Sahel.
- 2. In 2019, the international situation remained quite turbulent. The Council continued to focus on a number of serious unresolved conflicts, in particular in the Middle East, Africa and Latin America. During the reporting period, the situations in Iraq, Libya, the Syrian Arab Republic and Yemen and the Palestinian question drew the attention of the Council. The impact of those conflicts remained severe. Common ground was not always within reach, especially on the most sensitive and high-profile issues.
- 3. The situations in Africa remained a focus of the Council. Frequent meetings were held on the Central African Republic, Libya and South Sudan. The importance of close cooperation with the African Union was a key theme of many Council discussions on Africa in 2019.
- 4. The Council considered the situation in Cyprus and continued to monitor the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (UNMIK) and the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina.
- 5. The Council considered the situation in Haiti, with a specific focus on the transition from the United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti (MINUJUSTH) to its successor, the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (BINUH). The Council continued to monitor the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia.
- 6. The Council continued addressing a broad range of threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts. Special attention was paid to countering the financing of terrorism and other related challenges, including eliminating the supply of weapons and other

- resources to terrorists, the impact of terrorism on humanitarian assistance and addressing the potential nexus between terrorism and organized crime.
- 7. The Council continued to discuss issues related to non-proliferation, the protection of civilians in armed conflict, peacekeeping and peacebuilding, sanctions and cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations.
- 8. Further information on the work of the Council and more detailed accounts of its meetings can be found in the monthly assessments of the Council's work, available online at www.un.org/securitycouncil/content/ monthly-assessments. Records of all open Council meetings, including the names and titles of officials providing briefings, are available www.un.org/securitycouncil/content/meetings. The present introduction does not seek to provide an exhaustive list of meetings, developments or Council responses and actions. It is intended as a succinct and useful overview of key developments. Unless otherwise indicated, resolutions referred to in this introduction were adopted unanimously.

Africa

- 9. The Council was briefed concerning the political, socioeconomic and humanitarian situation in Burundi in February, June and October. According to the briefers, the security situation in the country remained generally calm, with a trend towards improvement, although a number of human rights violations continued to be reported. Some progress had been made in repatriating refugees and the Government had initiated serious preparatory efforts for the elections planned for 20 May 2020. The socioeconomic and humanitarian situation in the country remained difficult, with about 1.8 million people in need of humanitarian assistance. In October, the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Burundi, Michel Kafando, declared the end of his mission and stepped down. At the same time, the United Nations maintained its presence in Burundi.
- 10. The Council acknowledged the role of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa in promoting inclusive political dialogue in non-mission settings such as Cameroon, Chad, the Congo, Equatorial Guinea, Gabon and Sao Tome and Principe. In June, August and December, the Council discussed the multifarious challenges facing Central Africa and ways to assist the countries of the subregion in consolidating peace, resolving tensions and preventing political crises.

- 11. During 2019, the Council focused its work on support for regional and international efforts to assist the implementation of the Political Agreement for Peace and Reconciliation in the Central African Republic, which had been negotiated in Khartoum under the auspices of the African Union and signed representatives of the authorities of the Central African Republic and 14 armed groups in Bangui on 6 February 2019. In February, in a statement to the press, the Council welcomed the signing of the Agreement and urged the stakeholders to implement it. In March, in a statement to the press, the Council welcomed the consensus reached by the signatory parties regarding the formation of an inclusive Government. During 2019, the security and humanitarian challenges in the Central African Republic also remained in the focus of the Council.
- 12. In November, the Council adopted resolution 2499 (2019), by which it extended the mandate of the United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA) until 15 November 2020 and authorized MINUSCA to support the implementation of the Political Agreement for Peace and Reconciliation and assist the authorities of the Central African Republic in the preparation and delivery of the presidential, legislative and local elections in 2020 and 2021.
- 13. With regard to the sanctions regime, in January, the Council adopted resolution 2454 (2019), in which it decided to extend the sanctions regime in relation to the Central African Republic until 31 January 2020. In April, the Council issued a presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/3), in which it established benchmarks and conducted a review of the arms embargo, which led to the adoption of resolution 2488 (2019), in which the Council eased the arms embargo measures on the Government of the Central African Republic.
- 14. In Darfur, although the security situation improved overall, the region witnessed local clashes between government forces and the armed opposition, in addition to displacement and criminality. The Council closely monitored the political developments in Khartoum, including the establishment of transitional institutions, and their possible implications for the Darfur region. In June, the Council issued a statement to the press strongly condemning the recent violence in the Sudan and expressing regret for the loss of lives and injuries among civilians. In August, the Council issued a statement to the press commending the commitment of the people of the Sudan to a peaceful transition and encouraged the parties to resume negotiations towards peaceful solutions to the conflicts in Darfur, Southern Kordofan and Blue Nile.

- 15. In February, in its resolution 2455 (2019), the Council extended until 12 March 2020 the mandate of the Panel of Experts on the Sudan. Also in that resolution, the Council expressed its intention to establish benchmarks that could serve in guiding it to review the measures on Darfur. The drawdown of the African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (UNAMID) and the process of moving from peacekeeping to peacebuilding activities in the region in the light of the overall developments in the country was the focus of Council discussions on Darfur in 2019. In June, the Council adopted resolution 2479 (2019), by which it extended the mandate of UNAMID for four months. In October, by its resolution 2495 (2019) and in response to the request by the Government of the Sudan, the Council further extended the mandate of UNAMID until 31 October 2020 and expressed its intention to decide by 31 March 2020 on courses of action regarding the responsible drawdown and exit of UNAMID and on establishing a follow-on presence to UNAMID.
- 16. The Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court briefed the Council in relation to the situation in Darfur in June and December.
- 17. The situation in South Sudan remained a focus of the Council, which maintained its firm support for the efforts of the African Union and the Intergovernmental Authority on Development (IGAD) to address the crisis and assist the South Sudanese parties in implementing the Revitalized Agreement on the Resolution of the Conflict in South Sudan of 12 September 2018. The Council remained concerned by sporadic armed clashes across the country and repeatedly called upon the parties to uphold the Agreement on Cessation of Hostilities, Protection of Civilians and Humanitarian Access of 21 December 2017.
- 18. In March, by 14 votes in favour and with 1 abstention, the Council adopted resolution 2459 (2019), by which it extended the mandate of the United Nations Mission in South Sudan until 15 March 2020.
- 19. In May, the Council adopted resolution 2471 (2019), by 10 votes in favour and with 5 abstentions. By that resolution, the Council renewed the sanctions measures until 31 May 2020 and the mandate of the Panel of Experts until 30 June 2020.
- 20. In October, the Council issued a presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/11), in which it underlined that the Revitalized Agreement on the Resolution of the Conflict in South Sudan was an important step forward in the peace process in the country. The Council welcomed the initial progress in implementing the Agreement and called upon the parties to form a transitional Government of national unity, as required

20-09564 9/205

by the Agreement. The Council also called upon the parties to expedite the implementation of transitional security arrangements and to continue consultations towards a common solution regarding the number and boundaries of states.

- 21. In November, the parties to the Agreement decided to extend the pre-transitional period by 100 days, which was approved by IGAD. In that regard, the Council issued a statement to the press in which it expressed disappointment that the parties had failed to form a revitalized transitional Government of national unity by the 12 November deadline, and emphasized that full implementation of all provisions of the Agreement would set the country towards the goals of peace, stability, justice and development.
- 22. The Council continued to lend its support to the United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA) as an essential tool for the stability of the border regions between the Sudan and South Sudan. In April, by its resolution 2465 (2019), the Council extended until 15 October 2019 the support provided by UNISFA to the Joint Border Verification and Monitoring Mechanism. In May, by its resolution 2469 (2019), the Council extended the mandate of UNISFA until 15 November 2019 and reduced the troop ceiling to 3,550, while increasing the police ceiling to 640 personnel. In October, by its resolution 2492 (2019), the Council renewed until 15 November 2019 the support provided by UNISFA to the Joint Border Verification and Monitoring Mechanism. In November, by its resolution 2497 (2019), the Council extended the UNISFA mandate, including the support to the Mechanism, until 15 May 2020, maintained the troop ceiling at 3,550 and decided to postpone the withdrawal of the additional 295 troops.
- 23. The situation in the Democratic Republic of the Congo and its implications for security in the Great Lakes region was a focus of the work of the Council. The Council followed closely the situation in the country after the presidential elections, which were held at the end of December 2018. In January, in a statement to the press, the members of the Council welcomed the peaceful holding of the elections. Noting the disputes lodged before the Constitutional Court, they encouraged all concerned stakeholders to take up any reservations through the proper mechanisms and processes provided for in the Constitution of the Democratic Republic of the Congo and its electoral law. In August, in another statement to the press, the Council welcomed the efforts President, Félix the Tshisekedi, towards reconciliation, the steps he had taken to open political space and his initiatives to promote regional cooperation. In a statement to the press in October, the

- members of the Council welcomed the inauguration of the new coalition Government and encouraged it to place the needs of the Congolese people above the pursuit of partisan interests. In addition, the members of the Council called on the Armed Forces of the Democratic Republic of the Congo (FARDC) to strengthen their efforts to tackle armed groups and called upon FARDC and the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO) to work together more effectively.
- 24. The security situation remained fragile in the east of the country, notably in North Kivu, South Kivu and Ituri provinces. On 30 October, after concentrating over 20,000 troops in Beni territory, FARDC launched a unilateral offensive operation against the Allied Democratic Forces (ADF), to which the ADF responded with attacks against civilians and Ebola response teams. The significant number of civilian casualties resulting from the ADF attacks was one of the main triggers of the violent demonstrations against MONUSCO that took place in Beni in mid-November and December. The Council reviewed the situation in Beni in closed consultations twice. In March, the Council adopted resolution 2463 (2019), in which it requested the Secretary-General to conduct and provide it with an independent strategic review of MONUSCO by 20 October 2019, and reaffirmed that the Mission's strategic priorities should remain the protection of civilians and support to the stabilization and strengthening of State institutions and to governance and security reforms. It also extended the mandate of the Mission for nine months.
- 25. In October, the Secretary-General submitted to the Council the independent strategic review report prepared by a team of experts headed by Youssef Mahmoud (S/2019/842). The report contained recommendations on adjustments to the Mission and the responsible and phased drawdown of MONUSCO. It also included best- and worst-case scenarios for the situation on the ground and options for the future configuration of MONUSCO.
- 26. In December, the Council adopted resolution 2502 (2019), by which it extended the mandate of MONUSCO, including its Intervention Brigade, until 20 December 2020. Also in that resolution, the Council took note of the independent strategic review and requested the Government and the Secretary-General to articulate a joint strategy to specify the conditions needed for the drawdown of MONUSCO and its eventual exit from the country. The Council also reduced the troop ceiling of the Mission to 14,000 military personnel and decided that protection of

civilians should remain one of the strategic priorities of MONUSCO, including its Intervention Brigade. It also welcomed the Secretary-General's decision to send an evaluation mission to assess the ability of the Intervention Brigade to effectively deliver on its mandate to protect civilians.

- 27. The Council continued to support the sanctions regime against the Democratic Republic of the Congo. On 26 June, the Council adopted resolution 2478 (2019), renewing until 1 July 2020 the sanctions imposed against the designated individuals and entities. It also decided to extend the mandate of the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo until 1 August 2020.
- 28. The Council continued to monitor the humanitarian situation in the Democratic Republic of the Congo closely, including a new outbreak of Ebola. On 31 July, it held an informal interactive dialogue on the matter. On 2 August, the Council adopted a presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/6), in which it expressed grave concern about the Ebola virus outbreak in the Democratic Republic of the Congo and emphasized the need for broad cooperation in the response. Also in that presidential statement, the Council expressed its serious concern regarding the attacks on humanitarian and medical personnel engaged in medical duties and stressed the need for Governments and civil society in affected and at-risk countries to improve their preparedness, as well as to implement optimal vaccine strategies.
- 29. The Council continued to follow relations between Djibouti and Eritrea. In February and August, the Secretary-General updated the Council on the developments towards the normalization of relations between the two countries. During the reporting period, the situation on the border remained stable and the two countries refrained from any negative rhetoric and continued maintaining diplomatic relations. The remaining differences should be solved through dialogue.
- 30. The Council followed the political, humanitarian and security situation in Somalia closely. It noted, in particular, the importance of security sector, economic and political reforms. The significance of strengthening the cooperation between the Federal Government of Somalia and the federal member states was a consistent theme of Council discussions throughout the year. In a statement to the press in January, the Council expressed its regret at the decision of the Federal Government of Somalia to declare the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Somalia, Nicholas Haysom, persona non grata, underlined its full support for the

United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNSOM) and its mandate and underscored the strong and continued commitment of the international community to supporting peace, stability and development in the country.

- 31. The security situation in Somalia remained a source of deep concern for the Council. In statements to the press in March and December, the Council condemned terrorist attacks in Mogadishu. In July, the Council condemned a similar attack in the port city of Kismayo.
- 32. In March, the Council adopted resolution 2461 (2019), by which it renewed the mandate of UNSOM until 31 March 2020.
- 33. The Council remained committed to supporting a conditions-based transition of security responsibilities from the African Union Mission in Somalia (AMISOM) to Somali security institutions. In May, the Council adopted resolution 2472 (2019), in which it decided to reduce the authorized number of uniformed AMISOM personnel to a maximum of 19,626 by 28 February 2020 and expressed its intention to follow closely the implementation of the transition plan and handover of security responsibilities, with the aim of Somali security institutions taking the lead by December 2021.
- 34. In November, the Council adopted resolution 2498 (2019), by which it renewed the sanctions and arms embargo on Somalia and the ban on the import and export of Somali charcoal. It also introduced restrictions on transfers to Somalia of components of improvised explosive devices and extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts on Somalia until 15 December 2020. The Council expressed its full support for the work of the Panel of Experts throughout the year and called upon the Somalian authorities to work with the Panel.
- 35. In a statement to the press on 25 November, the Council underlined the importance of holding a peaceful, inclusive, credible and transparent one-person-one-vote election and called upon the Federal Government of Somalia and the federal member states to resume dialogue in order to resolve outstanding issues.
- 36. On 4 December, the Council adopted resolution 2500 (2019), by which it renewed for 12 months the authorizations for States and regional organizations cooperating with Somalia to use all necessary means to fight piracy off the coast of Somalia. While noting the improvements in the country, the Council recognized that piracy exacerbated instability in the country and stressed the need for an international response to tackle the underlying causes of the phenomenon. While piracy

20-09564 11/205

- attacks continue to occur, the Council and Member States should pay serious attention to the problem and continue coordinated counter-piracy efforts, including through the Contact Group on Piracy off the Coast of Somalia.
- 37. The situation in Libya remained a source of concern for the Council. In January, March, April, May, July, September and November, the Council was briefed on the situation in Libya by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Libya and Head of the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL), Ghassan Salamé, and the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya, Juergen Schulz.
- 38. On 26 March, the Council issued a statement to the press in which it welcomed Mr. Salamé's announcement that the national conference on the future of Libya would be held in Ghadames, Libya, from 14 to 16 April 2019.
- 39. On 5 April, the Council was briefed in consultations by the Special Representative about the escalation in violence around Tripoli, followed by a briefing by the Secretary-General in consultations on 10 April.
- 40. In July, the Council met in consultations after an airstrike on a detention centre near Tajoura in Tripoli, on 2 July, in which 53 people were killed and over 130 people were injured. On 5 July, the Council members issued a statement to the press condemning the attack and stressing the need for all parties to urgently de-escalate the situation and commit to a ceasefire. It also called for full respect for the arms embargo by all Member States.
- 41. On 5 August, the Council issued a statement to the press in which it expressed its support for the call of the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Libya for a truce between the parties to be declared for Eid al-Adha.
- 42. On 10 August, the Council members met and held consultations after the attack on a United Nations convoy in Benghazi. The Council issued a statement to the press on 11 August in which it condemned the attack in the strongest terms.
- 43. On 10 June, the Council held a meeting and adopted resolution 2473 (2019), by which it extended the mandate pursuant to resolution 2292 (2016), concerning the strict implementation of the arms embargo on the high seas off the coast of Libya for one year, until 10 June 2020.

- 44. In September, by its resolution 2486 (2019), the Council renewed the mandate of UNSMIL until 15 September 2020.
- 45. In October, the Council adopted resolution 2491 (2019), by which it renewed the authorizations related to the smuggling of migrants and trafficking in persons as set out in resolution 2240 (2015).
- 46. On 2 December, in a statement to the press, the members of the Council reiterated their call on all parties to urgently de-escalate the situation and commit to a ceasefire. They also reaffirmed their full support for the leadership of the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Libya and for his work to resolve the conflict in Libya. They expressed particular concern regarding reported breaches of the arms embargo, as well as the growing involvement of mercenaries.
- 47. The Council continued to follow closely political and security developments in Mali. The progress of the peace process, in particular the implementation of the Agreement on Peace and Reconciliation in Mali, remained a major focus of the Council in 2019. In March, the Council held a briefing at the ministerial level on the United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali (MINUSMA), aimed at discussing the way forward regarding the implementation of the Agreement and the future of MINUSMA.
- 48. In June, by its resolution 2480 (2019), the Council renewed the mandate of MINUSMA until 30 June 2020, specifying five priority areas in the implementation of the Agreement: constitutional reform, decentralization, security sector reform, the development of northern Mali and the participation of women. In the same resolution, the Council requested the Secretary-General to submit a letter to the Council every six months on the performance and transition planning of MINUSMA. The first letter was submitted to the Council in December (S/2019/1004).
- 49. On several occasions, the Council expressed its concern about security developments in Mali, in particular the terrorist attacks against civilians, MINUSMA and the Malian armed forces and the deterioration of the situation in central Mali. In August, by its resolution 2484 (2019), the Council renewed the sanctions regime and the mandate of the Panel of Experts on Mali for one year.
- 50. There was broad agreement in the Council that the situation in Mali could not be dealt with in isolation, and that a comprehensive approach to security challenges and instability in the Sahel was needed. In that context, the Council carried out a mission to Burkina Faso and

Mali in March, expressing its interest in preventing a further destabilization of the security situation and adapting its support to the evolving needs on the ground. The Council reaffirmed the centrality of the United Nations integrated strategy for the Sahel in providing a comprehensive framework to strengthen governance, security and development in the Sahel region.

- 51. The Council monitored the progress towards the full operationalization of the Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel (Burkina Faso, Chad, Mali, Mauritania and the Niger) and underlined the importance of international support for the Force. In June, in its resolution 2480 (2019), the Council expressed its support for the use of life support consumables provided by MINUSMA to the Force by all contingents of the Group of Five for the Sahel operating in the framework of the Force under the conditions that the Force or other partners undertook the responsibility of ensuring their delivery to their respective areas of operations when outside of Malian territory and that provision of consumables was undertaken in strict compliance with the human rights due diligence policy on United Nations support to non-United Nations security forces. In statements to the press in May and November, the Council welcomed the counter-terrorism operations of the Force and encouraged the States of the Group of Five for the Sahel to ensure that the Force continued to scale up its level of operation to demonstrate tangible operational results.
- 52. In February, the Council adopted resolution 2458 (2019), by which it extended the mandate of the United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea-Bissau (UNIOGBIS) until 28 February 2020. Under the new mandate, the Council agreed on a three-phase approach to the reconfiguration of UNIOGBIS and the reprioritization of its tasks in preparation for its and its prospective withdrawal 31 December 2020. As a part of its mission to West Africa, the Council visited Guinea-Bissau in February, where it held meetings with various interlocutors. In March, the Council issued a statement to the press congratulating Guinea-Bissau on the peaceful conduct of legislative elections. In November, in view of the unfolding political developments in Guinea-Bissau, the Council issued presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/13) expressing concern over the social and political situation, reiterating the need to hold presidential elections on time, urging the defence and security forces not to interfere in politics and expressing support for the mediation efforts of the Economic Community of West African States and the African Union.

53. The Council expressed its support for the work of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (UNOWAS) in a presidential statement in August (S/PRST/2019/7). In November, the Secretary-General presented a letter to the President of Council transmitting the independent strategic review of UNOWAS (S/2019/890). In December, the Council agreed a technical rollover of the UNOWAS mandate for one month, until 31 January 2020 (S/2019/1010).

African Union

- 54. The importance of close cooperation with the African Union was a key theme of many Council discussions on Africa in 2019, and especially during the ministerial-level meeting on peace and security in Africa held in September and the Council briefings in October. During the latter, the Council considered the annual report of the Secretary-General on strengthening the partnership between the African Union and the United Nations on issues of peace and security in Africa, including the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union.
- 55. In October, the members of the Council and the Peace and Security Council of the African Union met in Addis Ababa for thirteenth annual joint consultative meeting and fourth informal joint seminar. The members of the Council also conducted a visit to Juba. The meetings in Addis Ababa focused on the situations in the Central African Republic, Libya, South Sudan and the Sahel. There was also an opportunity for an informal exchange of views on the modalities of joint field missions and the African Union initiative Silencing the Guns in Africa by 2020.

Americas

56. In 2019, the Council met six times to discuss the situation in Colombia, and extended its full and unanimous support for the peace process in that country. In its five statements to the press issued over the year, the Council welcomed the continued affirmation by the Colombian parties of their continued commitment to the peace process and the development of programmes with a territorial focus and others that contributed to the implementation of the Final Agreement for Ending the Conflict and Building a Stable and Lasting Peace. It stressed the urgency of further accelerating efforts to secure full socioeconomic, political and legal reintegration of former members of the Revolutionary Armed Forces of Colombia-People's Army (FARC-EP) and reiterated its call for full respect for the

20-09564 13/205

independence and autonomy of the Special Jurisdiction for Peace. At every opportunity, the Council expressed serious concern over insecurity in some of the conflict-affected areas of the country and the continued killings of community and social leaders, including women, and of former FARC-EP members. It called for those responsible for those killings to be brought to justice.

- 57. In July, the Council conducted a mission to Colombia, which allowed members to get first-hand perceptions of the progress in the peace process from various government, society and United Nations stakeholders, as well as to reconfirm the Council's full support therefor.
- 58. The Council continued to support the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia and in September it adopted resolution 2487 (2019), by which it extended the mandate of the Mission for one year.
- 59. In Haiti, 2019 became the year of transition from a peacekeeping presence into a special political mission: BINUH was established by the Council in its resolution 2476 (2019), adopted on 25 June. The new Mission was mandated to advise and assist the Government of Haiti in assuming full responsibility for the situation in the country in several key areas and, in its resolution 2476 (2019), the Council stressed the primary responsibility of the Government of Haiti in those areas. In 2019, there were four Council meetings on Haiti, during which members expressed concern over conditions in the country and called for a national dialogue to urgently address the existing challenges.
- 60. After one procedural vote, the Council held four meetings in 2019 focused on the situation in the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela, including the political, humanitarian and security situation in the country. The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, Rosemary DiCarlo, and the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator, Mark Lowcock, briefed the Council. On 28 February 2019, two competing draft resolutions were presented for the Council's consideration; both failed to be adopted.

Asia

61. The Council continued to monitor closely the latest developments in Afghanistan. The security situation remained volatile and dangerous, with high levels of violence and large numbers of civilian casualties throughout 2019. The Council was united in stressing the need for continued international support to tackle the multitude of challenges facing Afghanistan. Some Council members stressed the importance of

regional support for tackling the challenges facing Afghanistan.

- 62. The continued presence of terrorist organizations such as Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (ISIL, also known as Da'esh) and their affiliates, in particular Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant-Khorasan, and other terrorist groups, and foreign terrorist fighters, along with brutal terrorist attacks in different parts of Afghanistan, complicated the security situation. The Council issued six statements to the press on terrorist attacks in Afghanistan, in which it condemned the cowardly terrorist attacks.
- 63. The Council focused on the peace reconciliation process in Afghanistan. Council members flagged their support for an Afghan-led and Afghan-owned inclusive peace process. Direct intra-Afghan talks remained essential for achieving long-term peace and stability in Afghanistan. Reaching that goal was at the heart of all regional and international efforts and formats.
- 64. The Council issued a statement to the press on the presidential elections that had been held in Afghanistan on 28 September. In the statement, it applauded the courage of Afghan voters, poll workers, election observers and security forces, who had made the presidential election possible despite technical challenges and security threats.
- 65. The Council held quarterly meetings, including debates and consultations, on Afghanistan, in March, June, September and December. The Council held an additional meeting on Afghanistan in July, with the participation of the Deputy Secretary-General, Amina Mohammed, and the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs. The members of the Council stressed the importance of the issue of women and peace and security in Afghanistan and the need for the Afghan peace process to be inclusive, with the participation of all Afghan political forces, including women. The challenges to Afghanistan and the region posed by illicit drugs and terrorism were also addressed, as was the presidential election process in the country. During the debate in September, the Executive Director of the United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime, Yury Fedotov, expressed concern about opium poppy cultivation and production in Afghanistan.
- 66. In 2019, the Council reaffirmed its support for the United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA). By its resolution 2460 (2019), the Council extended the mandate of UNAMA until 17 September 2019. By its resolution 2489 (2019), the Council again extended the mandate of UNAMA, until 17 September 2020. The members of the Council demonstrated their

readiness and ability to find compromise solutions, despite all the disagreements.

- 67. In 2019, the Council was briefed twice in consultations (in January and July) by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General and Head of the United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia, Natalia Gherman, on developments in Central Asia and the work of the Centre. She highlighted the Centre's efforts in promoting regional cooperation to combat terrorism, drug trafficking and organized crime and in tackling the shared management of the region's water resources, the roles of women and youth and energy. Council members expressed support for the work of the Special Representative and welcomed the Centre's efforts to address the challenges facing the countries of Central Asia.
- 68. The Council held a number of meetings on Myanmar throughout the year in order to stay up to date with developments on the ground.
- 69. The situation in Myanmar remained a source of concern for many members of the Council. During the meetings of the Council, discussions were mainly focused on issues such as recommendations of the Advisory Commission on Rakhine State, the provision of protection and assistance to refugees in Bangladesh and the creation of conditions allowing for the safe, voluntary, sustainable and dignified repatriation of refugees.
- 70. The members of the Council expressed grave concern about the current situation. They also expressed their deep appreciation to the Government of Bangladesh for its efforts to provide protection and assistance to refugees and expressed their determination to continue supporting Bangladesh. The members of the Council noted the efforts taken by the Governments of Bangladesh and Myanmar to prepare for the repatriation of refugees and urged both Governments to step up their efforts to implement bilateral agreements regarding repatriation and to create conditions conducive to the safe, voluntary and dignified return of Rohingya refugees.
- 71. The members of the Council highlighted the importance of undertaking transparent investigations into allegations of human rights abuses and violations.
- 72. On 16 August, the Council held consultations on the situation in Jammu and Kashmir. The Assistant Secretary-General for Peacebuilding Support, Oscar Fernández-Taranco, and the Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, General Carlos Humberto Loitey, briefed the Council.

Europe

- 73. The Council held debates on Bosnia and Herzegovina in May and in November. During the course of each meeting, it received a briefing from the High Representative for the Implementation of the Peace Agreement on Bosnia and Herzegovina, Valentin Inzko. The High Representative presented his most recent reports on the latest situation in the field, the prolonged provocation between the parties and the importance for the authorities of Bosnia and Herzegovina to comply with the General Framework Agreement for Peace in Bosnia and Herzegovina (Dayton Peace Agreement). He also urged Bosnia and Herzegovina to respect the Agreement and hold elections in Mostar.
- 74. On 5 November, the Council adopted resolution 2496 (2019), extending the mandate of the multinational stabilization force in Bosnia and Herzegovina for 12 months. During the meetings on Bosnia and Herzegovina, some Council members expressed their concern at the very slow progress in forming a Statelevel Government, the weakening of the rule of law and the prolonged provocation and divisive rhetoric between the parties.
- 75. The Council continued to encourage a settlement in Cyprus in accordance with its resolutions, based on a bizonal, bicommunal federation with political equality, as set out in the relevant Council resolutions, including paragraph 4 of resolution 716 (1991). The Special Representative of the Secretary-General in Cyprus and Head of Mission, United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus, Elizabeth Spehar, briefed the Council on prospects for a settlement. The Council adopted two resolutions by which it extended the mandate of the Mission and also adopted two statements to the press. In those resolutions and statements, the situation around hydrocarbon exploration, developments in Varosha, the increase in violations in the buffer zone and the lack of progress in broadening intercommunal confidencebuilding, including on establishing a direct military contact mechanism, were indicated as obstacles for the dialogue. The Council welcomed the Secretary-General's readiness to extend his efforts to assist in achieve a starting point for meaningful negotiations, and encouraged the leaders of the two communities and all parties involved to renew their political will to reach a settlement, including by engaging with the Secretary-General and the United Nations consultant Jane Holl Lute to agree on a way forward.
- 76. On 12 February 2019, the Assistant Secretary-General for Europe, Central Asia and the Americas Single Regional Political-Operational Structure,

20-09564 **15/205**

Miroslav Jenča, the Assistant Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Deputy Emergency Relief Coordinator, Ursula Mueller, the Chief Monitor of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe (OSCE) Special Monitoring Mission, Ertugrul Apakan and the Special Representative of the Chairperson-in-Office of OSCE, Martin Sajdik, briefed the Council on the implementation of its resolution 2202 (2015), in which the Council had endorsed the Package of Measures for the Implementation of the Minsk Agreements. They stressed that the Minsk Agreements, despite being largely underimplemented, remained the only agreed framework for a negotiated peace in eastern Ukraine. The members of the Council reaffirmed their unanimous support for the Package of Measures, encouraged implementation of the obligations contained therein, including respect for a lasting ceasefire, and exchanged further views on the challenges in that regard.

77. On 20 May, the Council members considered and rejected by vote a proposal by one delegation to discuss the signing in Ukraine of the law on the use of Ukrainian as the State language. Instead, on 16 July, the Council discussed the entry into force of the above-mentioned law when the Council was briefed by the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and by the High Commissioner on National Minorities of OSCE, Lamberto Zannier. Both presented their views with respect to the above-mentioned law and called for a fair correlation between the protection of the rights of minorities and the preservation of the State language as a tool for integration within society. The Under-Secretary-General Political for and Peacebuilding Affairs welcomed the statement by the President of Ukraine, Volodymyr Zelenskyy, that a thorough analysis of the law would be conducted and expressed hope that that would pave the way for further measures to safeguard the rights of minorities. The Under-Secretary-General also noted that the political transition in Ukraine was taking place against the backdrop of the ongoing conflict in Donbas and expressed regret at the persistent failure to agree on a ceasefire under the Minsk Agreements. The Council members expressed gratitude for the briefings and exchanged their own views on the matter (see S/PV.8575).

78. On 25 April 2019, following a request to discuss the facilitation of obtaining foreign citizenship for residents of certain areas of the Donetsk and Luhansk regions of eastern Ukraine, the Council heard a briefing by the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and by the Assistant Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Deputy

Emergency Relief Coordinator, who presented the views of the Secretariat on the serious humanitarian conditions facing Ukrainians in certain areas of the Donetsk and Luhansk regions of eastern Ukraine. An exchange of opinions between the Council members and the representative of Ukraine followed (see S/PV.8516).

Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999), 1244 (1999)

- 79. In 2019, the Council convened a debate on UNMIK three times: in February, June and October. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General and Head of UNMIK briefed the Council on recent developments.
- 80. Council members expressed concern at the political stalemate, urged political leaders to reach an agreement quickly and underscored the need to resume the dialogue for the normalization of relations between Belgrade and Pristina.
- 81. Council members also called for the implementation of the related agreements and called for continued engagement from both sides in resolving outstanding issues, including the establishment of an association or community of Serb municipalities of Kosovo. The members of the Council emphasized that the immunity of the staff of United Nations missions should not be violated under any circumstances. The Council agreed to reduce briefings to two in 2020, in April and October.

Middle East

- 82. In 2019, the key focus of the Council's discussion on the situation in Iraq was to support the country's continued post-conflict recovery, stabilization, reconstruction and reconciliation efforts to meet the needs of all Iraqis. In February, the new Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Iraq and Head of the United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI), Jeanine Hennis-Plasschaert, briefed the Council on recent developments in the country. She expressed concern over the slow pace of completing the process of formation of the new Government and called for a shift from factional politics to a focus on addressing the immediate needs of the country.
- 83. On 19 February, the Council adopted a presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/1) welcoming the cooperation between Iraq and Kuwait on the issue of missing Kuwaiti and third-country nationals and the return of Kuwaiti property, including the national archives.

- 84. In May, the Council adopted resolution 2470 (2019), renewing the mandate of UNAMI until 31 May 2020. Following the adoption of that resolution, the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Iraq briefed the Council on the Secretary-General's latest reports on UNAMI (S/2019/365) and on the issue of missing Kuwaiti and third-country nationals and missing Kuwaiti property, including the national archives (S/2019/352).
- 85. On 28 and 29 June, the members of the Council visited Iraq and Kuwait in a mission co-led by Kuwait and the United States of America. The members noted that the visit had underscored their support for the continued post-conflict recovery of Iraq and the stabilization, reconstruction and reconciliation efforts to meet the needs of all Iraqis. The members welcomed the strong bilateral relations between Iraq and Kuwait and commended the continued support by the Government of Kuwait of Iraq in its efforts to achieve stability and prosperity. On 30 June, the Council adopted a statement to the press in that regard.
- 86. In December, the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Iraq briefed the Council on the situation concerning Iraq. On 13 December, the Council issued a statement to the press on demonstrations in Iraq. The members of the Council acknowledged the right to peaceful assembly in Iraq and called for the Iraqi authorities to promptly conduct transparent investigations into the violence against those demonstrating.
- 87. The Council continued to monitor closely the situation in Lebanon throughout 2019 and maintained its commitment to the stability, security, sovereignty and political independence of the country. The members also expressed concern at the limited progress made towards the establishment of a permanent ceasefire and other key provisions connected with Council resolutions 1559 (2004) and 1701 (2006).
- 88. In that context, in March, the Council held consultations on the implementation of resolution 1701 (2006), in which it had called for a cessation of hostilities between Hizbullah and Israel. The Council was briefed by the newly appointed Special Coordinator for Lebanon, Ján Kubiš; the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations, Jean-Pierre Lacroix; and the Head of Mission and Force Commander, United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL), Major General Stefano Del Col.
- 89. In February, the Council held closed consultations on the implementation of resolution 1559 (2004). The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs gave a briefing on the latest report

- of the Secretary-General and the most recent developments in Lebanon. After the meeting, Council members agreed on elements for the press in which they reaffirmed the Council's strong support for the sovereignty and territorial integrity of Lebanon, welcomed institutional progress following the formation of the new Government and recalled that the Lebanese Armed Forces were the only legitimate armed forces in the country.
- 90. In August, the Council adopted resolution 2485 (2019), extending the mandate of UNIFIL in its current configuration for another year (until 31 August 2020), and held consultations with the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific, Mohamed Khaled Khiari.
- 91. In October, the Council held its regular closed consultations on the implementation of resolution 1559 (2004). The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs briefed the Council, including on the findings of her visit to Lebanon.
- 92. In November, the Council held closed consultations on the implementation of resolution 1701 (2006). The Special Coordinator for Lebanon and the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific briefed the Council. After the meeting, Council members agreed on elements for the press commending the role of UNIFIL in maintaining calm along the Blue Line and stressing the importance of UNIFIL being able to fulfil its mandate. The members of the Council also called on all actors to maintain the peaceful character of the protests by avoiding violence and respecting the right to peaceful assembly and protest. They commended the role of the Lebanese Armed Forces and other State security institutions in protecting that right. The members of the Council emphasized the need for the Lebanese authorities to implement meaningful economic reforms in a timely manner and under a Lebanese-owned and Lebanese-led process.
- 93. The situation in the Syrian Arab Republic remained one of the most discussed matters on the Council's agenda. The Council met on a monthly basis to discuss the humanitarian situation, political process and chemical dossier.
- 94. During the year, the Council was briefed by the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and other officials of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, who introduced the reports of the Secretary-General and detailed the humanitarian situation in the Syrian Arab Republic and cross-border humanitarian assistance.

20-09564 17/205

- 95. At the request of the pen holders on the humanitarian situation in the Syrian Arab Republic (Belgium, Germany and Kuwait), the Council discussed the humanitarian situation in the Syrian Arab Republic on a number of occasions. In September, the Council failed to adopt a resolution on a ceasefire in Idlib. In December, the Council failed to adopt a resolution to renew the cross-border mechanism. The Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Syria, Geir Pedersen, who assumed his position on 7 January, regularly briefed the Council on developments in the political process pursuant to resolution 2254 (2015). On 23 September, the Secretary-General announced the agreement of the Government of the Syrian Arab Republic and the Syrian Negotiations Commission for a credible, balanced and inclusive Constitutional Committee facilitated by the United Nations in Geneva. In that regard, in October, the Council issued a statement (S/PRST/2019/12) in which it expressed its determination that the launch of the Syrian-owned and Syrian-led Constitutional Committee should be the beginning of the political process to end the Syrian conflict in line with Council resolution 2254 (2015) that met the legitimate aspirations of all Syrians.
- 96. With regard to the implementation of resolution 2118 (2013), the Council continued to hear briefings on a monthly basis in closed consultations by the Under-Secretary-General and High Representative for Disarmament Affairs, Izumi Nakamitsu. In November, the Council held a private meeting at which the Director General of the Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW), Fernando Arias, briefed the Council.
- 97. Throughout 2019, the Council met frequently to discuss the situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question.
- 98. During the year, the Council held its quarterly open debates on the Middle East, with the Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peace Process and Personal Representative of the Secretary-General to the Palestine Liberation Organization and the Palestinian Authority, Nickolay Mladenov, as briefer. The Special Coordinator he urged continued attention to "dangerous dynamics" on the ground, including the deteriorating humanitarian and economic situation in the Gaza Strip, highlighting in particular the impact of Israeli settlements, condemned violence, including rocket attacks, and stressed the importance of intra-Palestinian reconciliation efforts.
- 99. In March, the Council met on the Middle East twice; the Council also met under "any other business" to discuss an ongoing disagreement between Israel and the State of Palestine on tax collection, as requested by

- Indonesia and Kuwait. The Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peace Process stressed that the actions being taken could have economic and security implications, as well as an effect on any political dialogue. On 26 March, the Special Coordinator presented to the Council the second written report (S/2019/251) on the implementation of resolution 2334 (2016) since its adoption. He presented the second written report for 2019 (S/2019/938) to the Council on 18 December.
- 100. In May and June, the Council met once under "any other business" and again in closed consultations under the agenda item "Middle East", to discuss the situation in the Persian Gulf and the Gulf of Oman.
- 101. Throughout 2019, the Council met regularly to maintain its support for the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF). The Council continued to call for the immediate implementation of resolution 338 (1973). In June and December, the Council adopted resolutions 2477 (2019) and 2503 (2019), respectively, by which it extended the mandate of UNDOF for a period of six months. Also in those resolutions, the Council welcomed the efforts by UNDOF to consolidate its presence and to intensify its operations in the area of separation and its intention to resume inspections in the area of limitation on the Bravo side, expressed concern regarding violations of the Agreement on Disengagement between Israeli and Syrian Forces of 1974 and stressed the importance of exercising maximum restraint and of the liaison function of UNDOF to prevent escalation.
- 102. During 2019, the Council followed closely the conflict in Yemen and remained deeply concerned by the high levels of violence in the country and the continued deterioration of the humanitarian situation. In that regard, the Council, during its monthly sessions, heard briefings by the Under-Secretary-General and Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Yemen, Martin Griffiths: the Under-Secretary-General Humanitarian Affairs; the Head of the United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA) and Chair of the Redeployment Coordination Committee. Michael Lollesgaard. succeeded by Abhijit Guha; and the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014), Gustavo Meza-Cuadra.
- 103. In January, the Council adopted resolution 2452 (2019), by which it established UNMHA, to support the implementation of the Agreement on the City of Hudaydah and the Ports of Hudaydah, Salif, and Ra's Isa, as set out in the Stockholm Agreement. In July, the Council adopted resolution 2481 (2019), by which it renewed the mandate of UNMHA for six months, until 15 January 2020. In February, the Council adopted

resolution 2456 (2019), by which it extended the asset freeze and travel ban and sanctions measures, as well as the mandate of the Panel of Experts on Yemen.

104. In August, the Council adopted a presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/9), in which it expressed its concern at the escalation in violence across Yemen.

105. In 2019, the Council continued to receive briefings on Western Sahara in consultations from the Personal Envoy of the Secretary-General for Western Sahara, Horst Köhler, and the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Western Sahara and Head of the United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO), Colin Stewart. Members of the Council reaffirmed the objective of a just, lasting and mutually acceptable political solution that would provide for the self-determination of the people of Western Sahara.

106. In that context, in April and October, the Council adopted resolutions 2468 (2019) and 2494 (2019), respectively. By its resolution 2494 (2019), the Council extended the mandate of MINURSO until 31 October 2020.

107. In May, Mr. Köhler announced that he was resigning for personal reasons. The post of Personal Envoy of the Secretary-General for Western Sahara has remained vacant since that time.

Thematic issues

108. The Council continued its consideration of several thematic issues in 2019.

109. Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction continued to remain an important priority for the Council. In March, the Permanent Representative of Indonesia, Dian Triansyah Djani, briefed the Council in his capacity as Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004), on the work of the Committee since October 2018.

110. In April, the Federal Minister for Foreign Affairs of Germany, Heiko Maas, chaired a meeting to discuss the importance of supporting the Non-Proliferation Treaty ahead of the 2020 Review Conference. During that meeting, the Council was also briefed by the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency, Yukiya Amano. The Council met on two occasions under the agenda item "Non-proliferation" to discuss the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015), on the Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action on the Iranian nuclear issue, and two reports from the Secretary-General in that regard (S/2019/492 and S/2019/934).

111. On 22 August, the Council met under the agenda item on threats to international peace and security. The

High Representative for Disarmament Affairs briefed the Council on the issue of missiles in the context of the dissolution of the Intermediate-Range Nuclear Forces Treaty.

112. On 22 November, the Council adopted a presidential statement (S/PRST/2019/14), in which it reaffirmed its strong support for the Convention on the Prohibition of the Development, Production, Stockpiling and Use of Chemical Weapons and on Their Destruction and for the work of OPCW in accordance with the Convention.

113. The Council continued to monitor the situation in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea closely under the agenda item "Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea". In April, by its resolution 2464 (2019), the Council extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to Security Council resolution 1874 (2009) until 24 April 2020. Also in that resolution, the Council urged all States, relevant United Nations bodies and other interested parties to cooperate fully with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006) and the Panel of Experts.

114. In December, the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific briefed the Council on the recent troubling developments pertaining to the agenda item on non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea.

115. The Council continued to focus on threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts. On 28 March, the Council adopted resolution 2462 (2019), which was its first decision devoted specifically to the issues of preventing and suppressing the financing of terrorism.

116. In the first half of 2019, the Council and its subsidiary bodies also focused on the threat posed by the nexus between international terrorism and transnational organized crime. A thematic open debate on that subject held in early July was later followed by the adoption of resolution 2482 (2019), in which the Council addressed various means to disrupt financial or logistical support to terrorists through trafficking in persons, drugs, artefacts and cultural property.

117. In August, the Secretary-General issued the ninth report on the threat to international peace and security posed by ISIL. The Council briefing on the report was largely focused on the challenges related to repatriation, prosecution, rehabilitation and reintegration of foreign terrorist fighters and their family members in the aftermath of the military defeat of the ISIL core in Iraq and the Syrian Arab Republic.

118. The Council also received a periodic briefing by the Chairs of the Security Council Committee pursuant

20-09564 19/205

to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities, the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism and the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) on the work undertaken by those subsidiary organs with regard to counter-terrorism.

119. On 20 September 2019, the Council adopted resolution 2490 (2019), renewing the mandate of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant until 21 September 2020. The Special Adviser and Head of the Team briefed the Council in November.

120. In October, the President of the International Court of Justice briefed the Council.

121. The President and the Prosecutor of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals briefed the Council in July and December.

122. Under the agenda item on the promotion and strengthening of the rule of law in the maintenance of international peace and security, two meetings of the Council (on 1 April and 13 August) were devoted to international humanitarian law. On 20 August, the Council adopted a presidential statement to mark the seventieth anniversary of the Geneva Conventions of 12 August 1949 (S/PRST/2019/8).

123. Under the agenda item on threats to international peace and security, the Council held a thematic meeting on mercenary activities as a source of insecurity and destabilization in Africa.

124. The Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court briefed the Council on the investigation of the situation in Libya, in May and November.

125. The Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court briefed the Council on the investigation of the situation in Darfur, in June and December.

126. United Nations peacekeeping operations remained at the heart of the Council's agenda. In April, the Council held an open debate on women in peacekeeping operations. The Secretary-General, António Guterres, presented his uniformed gender parity strategy 2018–2028. Member States discussed issues related to the deployment of female personnel in United Nations peacekeeping operations, including the various challenges faced by troop- and police-contributing countries in deploying women.

127. In May, the Council held an open debate on training and capacity-building with regard to United Nations peacekeeping operations. Members of the

Council highlighted the importance of training in preparing peacekeepers for effective fulfilment of vital tasks and improving their performance. The Council adopted a presidential statement on the issue (S/PRST/2019/4).

128. In June and July, the Council held meetings on cooperation with host States and strengthening triangular cooperation. The Council reaffirmed the need to improve the relationship among the Council, troopcontributing countries and the Secretariat and host Governments. The meetings were held to foster a spirit of partnership and cooperation and enhance collaboration and planning between the United Nations and relevant international, regional and subregional organizations and arrangements.

129. In September, the Council held its annual debate on reform of United Nations peacekeeping operations. Member States agreed on the necessity of close cooperation between all relevant stakeholders. They also emphasized the importance of well-equipped and capable contingents, as well as clear, focused, sequenced, prioritized and achievable mandates, reaffirming the primacy of politics.

130. The Council continued to pay attention to the issue of conflict prevention. In June, the Council heard briefings from the Secretary-General, the Chair of the Elders, Mary Robinson, and the Vice-Chair of the Elders, Ban Ki-moon, who highlighted the importance of mediation and good offices in conflict prevention and resolution. In October, the Council discussed the central role of preventive diplomacy for conflict prevention and resolution in Africa.

131. In July and November, the Council held meetings on peacebuilding and sustaining peace, during which it discussed the need to strengthen partnerships for successful nationally owned transitions and the importance of reconciliation in maintaining international peace and security.

132. In July, the Council held an open debate on the role of youth in maintaining of international peace and security. In December, the Council adopted a presidential statement on the role of youth in silencing the guns in Africa (S/PRST/2019/15), following the debate on the issue in October.

133. In 2019, Council members continued to emphasize the importance of advancing and strengthening cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations, in particular with regard to issues related to peace and security.

134. On 7 and 12 March 2019, the Council was briefed by the Chairperson-in-Office of OSCE and by the High Representative of the European Union for Foreign Affairs and Security Policy, respectively.

135. On 16 May, the Council held a briefing on peace and security in Africa to discuss the operationalization of the Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel. The Assistant Secretary-General for Africa, Bintou Keita, presented the latest report of the Secretary-General on the Joint Force (S/2019/371).

136. On 25 September 2019, a high-level debate was held on cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security, focusing on the contribution of the Collective Security Treaty Organization, the Commonwealth of Independent States and the Shanghai Cooperation Organization in countering terrorist threats.

137. On 26 September 2019, the Council held a meeting on peace and security in Africa, focusing on partnership to strengthen regional peace and security. The Council members, in their statements, reaffirmed the special place that African issues occupied on the Council's agenda and underscored that ensuring peace and security on the continent was of utmost importance for the entire international community. They also emphasized the need for strengthened partnership in that regard between the United Nations and the African Union.

138. On 2 October 2019, the Council held a debate on peace and security in Africa, on the theme "Mobilizing youth towards silencing the guns by 2020", during which it focused on the positive role played by African youth in peace processes. The meeting was enriched by the contributions of African youth leaders, including the Special Envoy on Youth of the African Union, Aya Chebbi.

139. The Council continued its consideration of women and peace and security agenda. In April, in an open debate, the Secretary-General presented the Council his annual report on sexual violence in conflict (S/2019/280). The Council subsequently adopted resolution 2467 (2019) by 13 votes in favour, with 2 abstentions.

140. In October, the Council adopted, in an open debate, resolution 2493 (2019), which focused on the implementation of the women and peace and security agenda in preparation for the commemoration of the twentieth anniversary of Council resolution 1325 (2000).

141. On 11 June, the Council adopted resolution 2474 (2019) and held an open debate on the issue of missing persons in armed conflict. On 20 June, the Council adopted resolution 2475 (2019), on the issue of persons with disabilities in armed conflict.

142. The Council explored the various aspects of the issue of protection of civilians in armed conflict and

emphasized the twentieth anniversary of the first Council resolution on the protection of civilians, resolution 1265 (1999). In May, the Council held an open debate and discussed the annual report of the Secretary-General on the protection of civilians in armed conflict (S/2019/373).

143. In August, the Council held an open debate on children and armed conflict. The Under-Secretary-General and Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Children and Armed Conflict, Virginia Gamba de Potgieter, briefed the Council on her activities. The members of the Council emphasized the twentieth anniversary since the adoption of resolution 1261 (1999), the first resolution on children and armed conflict, and the thirtieth anniversary of the entry into force of the Convention on the Rights of the Child.

144. On 25 January, the Council held an open debate on addressing the impacts of climate-related disasters on international peace and security under the agenda item "Maintenance of international peace and security". The debate was chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Dominican Republic, Miguel Vargas. Briefers included the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs; the Under-Secretary-General and Administrator of the United Nations Development Programme, Achim Steiner; the Chief Scientist of the World Meteorological Organization, Pavel Kabat; and a Research Assistant with the Environmental Security Program of the Stimson Center, Lindsay Getschel.

Other matters

145. The Council continued its consideration of its working methods, including through the implementation of the note by the President of the Council (S/2017/507). In June, the Council held an open debate on that issue. In December, the Council adopted eight notes by the President of the Council.

146. On 20 August, the Council adopted its annual report (S/2018/797).

147. Throughout the year, the Council continued to receive regular briefings from the Chairs of its subsidiary bodies, including the regular briefing by the outgoing Chairs in December.

148. In 2019, 10 Presidents of the Council held briefings with the broader membership at the end of their presidency.

20-09564 **21/205**

Part I Activities relating to all questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security

I Resolutions adopted by the Security Council

Resolution number	Date of adoption	Subject
2452 (2019)	16 January	The situation in the Middle East
2453 (2019)	30 January	The situation in Cyprus
2454 (2019)	31 January	The situation in the Central African Republic
2455 (2019)	7 February	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2456 (2019)	26 February	The situation in the Middle East
2457 (2019)	27 February	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
2458 (2019)	28 February	The situation in Guinea-Bissau
2459 (2019)	15 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2460 (2019)	15 March	The situation in Afghanistan
2461 (2019)	27 March	The situation in Somalia
2462 (2019)	28 March	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
2463 (2019)	29 March	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
2464 (2019)	10 April	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
2465 (2019)	12 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2466 (2019)	12 April	The question concerning Haiti
2467 (2019)	23 April	Women and peace and security
2468 (2019)	30 April	The situation concerning Western Sahara
2469 (2019)	14 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

20-09564 23/205

Resolution number	Date of adoption	Subject
2470 (2019)	21 May	The situation concerning Iraq
2471 (2019)	30 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2472 (2019)	31 May	The situation in Somalia
2473 (2019)	10 June	The situation in Libya
2474 (2019)	11 June	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
2475 (2019)	20 June	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
2476 (2019)	25 June	The question concerning Haiti
2477 (2019)	26 June	The situation in the Middle East
2478 (2019)	26 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
2479 (2019)	27 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2480 (2019)	28 June	The situation in Mali
2481 (2019)	15 July	The situation in the Middle East
2482 (2019)	19 July	Threats to international peace and security
2483 (2019)	25 July	The situation in Cyprus
2484 (2019)	29 August	The situation in Mali
2485 (2019)	29 August	The situation in the Middle East
2486 (2019)	12 September	The situation in Libya
2487 (2019)	12 September	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
2488 (2019)	12 September	The situation in the Central African Republic
2489 (2019)	17 September	The situation in Afghanistan
2490 (2019)	20 September	Threats to international peace and security
2491 (2019)	3 October	Maintenance of international peace and security
2492 (2019)	15 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2493 (2019)	29 October	Women and peace and security
2494 (2019)	30 October	The situation concerning Western Sahara
2495 (2019)	31 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

Resolution number	Date of adoption	Subject
2496 (2019)	5 November	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
2497 (2019)	14 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
2498 (2019)	15 November	The situation in Somalia
2499 (2019)	15 November	The situation in the Central African Republic
2500 (2019)	4 December	The situation in Somalia
2501 (2019)	16 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
2502 (2019)	19 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
2503 (2019)	19 December	The situation in the Middle East

20-09564 **25/205**

II Statements by the President of the Security Council

Statement by the President	Date	Subject
S/PRST/2019/1	19 February	The situation between Iraq and Kuwait
S/PRST/2019/2	3 April	The situation in Mali
S/PRST/2019/3	9 April	The situation in the Central African Republic
S/PRST/2019/4	7 May	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PRST/2019/5	13 June	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
S/PRST/2019/6	2 August	Peace and security in Africa
S/PRST/2019/7	7 August	Peace consolidation in West Africa
S/PRST/2019/8	20 August	The promotion and strengthening of the rule of law in the maintenance of international peace and security
S/PRST/2019/9	29 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PRST/2019/10	12 September	Central African region
S/PRST/2019/11	8 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PRST/2019/12	8 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PRST/2019/13	4 November	The situation in Guinea-Bissau
S/PRST/2019/14	22 November	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PRST/2019/15	12 December	Peace and security in Africa

III Communications from the President of the Security Council or the Secretary-General

Items relating to the situation in the Middle East

United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

S/2019/26	4 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/27	8 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/619	1 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East

Syrian Arab Republic

S/2019/91	28 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/201	1 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/208	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/279	28 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/355	29 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/447	30 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/541	27 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/601	25 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/697	28 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/775	26 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/784	1 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/915	29 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 27/205

Yemen				
S/2019/29	9 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
S/2019/95	28 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/96	30 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
S/2019/247	18 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/485	10 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/734	6 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/735	11 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
S/2019/823	14 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
The situation cor	The situation concerning Western Sahara			
S/2019/164	15 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/165	19 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
The situation in l	Liberia			
S/2019/123	8 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
The situation in S	Somalia			
S/2019/140	11 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/141	14 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
S/2019/255	20 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/372	6 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/396	9 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/388	10 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		

S/2019/397	15 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/435	17 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/436	24 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/440	24 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/616	30 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/671	19 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/977	16 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
Items relating to t	the situation in t	the former Yugoslavia	
The situation in B	Sosnia and Herzo	egovin a	
S/2019/364	1 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/751	16 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
Security Council and 1244 (1999)	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)		
S/2019/153	18 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/873	8 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
The question conc	cerning Haiti		
S/2019/387 and S/2019/387/Corr.1	13 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/811	17 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/812	11 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
The situation in Sierra Leone			
	ici i a Leone		
S/2019/123	8 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	

20-09564 **29/205**

S/2019/638	6 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
International Res	idual Mechanisı	n for Criminal Tribunals	
S/2019/84	21 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/107	29 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/108	4 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/170	19 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/999	11 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/1000	27 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
The situation in tl	he Great Lakes	region	
S/2019/67	17 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/68	21 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
The situation con	cerning the Dem	ocratic Republic of the Congo	
S/2019/9	2 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/159	15 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/607	29 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/842	24 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/917	29 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/918	3 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
The situation in the Central African Republic			
S/2019/76	23 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/145	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	

S/2019/210	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/294	4 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/609	26 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/855	31 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/1008	31 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
Children and arm	ed conflict		
S/2019/92	29 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/719	9 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
The situation in G	Suinea-Bissau		
S/2019/123	8 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/596	23 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/597	25 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
Security Council	mission		
S/2019/123	8 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/252	20 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/533	27 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/557	10 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/825	16 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
Central African region			
S/2019/625	1 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	

20-09564 31/205

Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan			
S/2019/110	4 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/142	12 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/143	14 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/227	8 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/228	12 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/249	18 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/366	29 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/367	2 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/426	21 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/427	23 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/544	28 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/544	2 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/731	5 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/732	11 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/768	20 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/896	19 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
Peacebuilding an	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace		
S/2019/65	21 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
The situation concerning Iraq			
S/2019/533	27 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the	

Secretary-General

S/2019/60	17 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/346	25 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
Peace and security	y in Africa	
S/2019/227	8 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/228	12 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/252	20 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/890	15 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1009	19 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1010	27 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

S/2019/695	28 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the
		Security Council

The situation in Libya

S/2019/5	2 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/794	4 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/813	11 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

The situation in Mali

S/2019/771	24 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1004	27 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)

S/2019/557	10 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the
		Secretary-General

20-09564 33/205

Relations between Cameroon and Nigeria

S/2019/1012	20 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/2013	27 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation between Eritrea and Ethiopia

S/2019/154	18 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/627	2 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

IV Meetings of the Security Council

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8440	3 January	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on Somalia (S/2018/1149)
S/PV.8441	9 January	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on status of implementation of Security Council resolution 2451 (2018) (S/2018/1173)
		Report of the Secretary-General on status of implementation of Security Council resolution 2451 (2018) (S/2019/11)
S/PV.8442	10 January	Peace consolidation in West Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (S/2018/1175)
S/PV.8443	11 January	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2019/6)
S/PV.8444	16 January	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 31 December 2018 from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/28)
S/PV.8445	16 January	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2018/1174)
S/PV.8446	17 January	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8447 (closed)	17 January	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop - and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus
S/PV.8448	18 January	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2019/19)

Note: For closed meetings, a communiqué is issued in place of a verbatim record.

20-09564 35/205

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8449	22 January	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8450	23 January	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2018/1159)
S/PV.8451	25 January	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Addressing the impacts of climate-related disasters on international peace and security
		Letter dated 2 January 2019 from the Permanent Representative of the Dominican Republic to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/1)
S/PV.8452	26 January	The situation in the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela
S/PV.8453	30 January	The situation in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2019/37)
S/PV.8454	30 January	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8455	31 January	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Letter dated 14 December 2018 from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic established pursuant to resolution 2399 (2018) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2018/1119)
S/PV.8456	4 February	Threats to international peace and security
		Mercenary activities as a source of insecurity and destabilization in Africa
		Letter dated 31 January 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Equatorial Guinea to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/97)
S/PV.8457	5 February	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Transnational organized crime at sea as a threat to international peace and security
		Letter dated 31 January 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Equatorial Guinea to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/98)
S/PV.8458	7 February	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Letter dated 10 January 2019 from the Panel of Experts on the Sudan established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/34)
S/PV.8459	7 February	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (S/2019/102)
S/PV.8460	11 February	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Eighth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat (S/2019/103)
S/PV.8461	12 February	Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)
		Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)
S/PV.8462	13 February	The situation concerning Iraq
		Twenty-first report of the Secretary-General pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2019/78)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2421 (2018) (S/2019/101)
S/PV.8463	19 February	The situation between Iraq and Kuwait
S/PV.8464	19 February	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8465	19 February	The situation in Burundi
S/PV.8466	20 February	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8467	21 February	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2019/147)
S/PV.8468	25 February	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the African Union- United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/44)

20-09564 37/205

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8469	26 February	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 25 January 2019 from the Panel of Experts on Yemen addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/83)
S/PV.8470	26 February	Security Council mission
		Briefing by Security Council mission to West Africa (13 to 17 February 2019)
S/PV.8471	26 February	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018) (S/2019/157)
S/PV.8472	26 February	The situation in the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela
S/PV.8473	27 February	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		Silencing the guns in Africa Letter dated 13 February 2019 from the Chargé d'affaires a.i. of the Permanent Mission of Equatorial Guinea to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/169)
S/PV.8474	28 February	The situation in Guinea-Bissau
		Report of the Secretary-General on developments in Guinea-Bissau and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea-Bissau (S/2019/115)
S/PV.8475	28 February	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8476	28 February	The situation in the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela
S/PV.8477	28 February	The situation in Myanmar
S/PV.8478 (closed)	5 March	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Mission in South Sudan
S/PV.8479	7 March	Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe
S/PV.8480	8 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on South Sudan (covering the period from 1 December 2018 to 26 February 2019) (S/2019/191)

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8481	11 March	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2019/193)
S/PV.8482	12 March	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		European Union
S/PV.8483 (closed)	14 March	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PV.8484	15 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on South Sudan (covering the period from 1 December 2018 to 26 February 2019) (S/2019/191)
S/PV.8485	15 March	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2019/193)
S/PV.8486	18 March	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Letter dated 15 February 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/159)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2019/218)
S/PV.8487	19 March	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction
S/PV.8488	20 March	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8489	26 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016) (S/2019/251)
S/PV.8490	26 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8491	26 March	The situation in the Great Lakes region

20-09564 39/205

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region (S/2019/229)
S/PV.8492	27 March	Security Council mission
		Briefing by Security Council mission to the Sahel (21 to 25 March 2019)
S/PV.8493	27 March	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8494	27 March	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.8495	27 March	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2019/248)
S/PV.8496	28 March	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Preventing and combating the financing of terrorism
		Letter dated 14 March 2019 from the Permanent Representative of France to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/239)
S/PV.8497	29 March	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2423 (2018) (S/2019/207)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2019/262)
S/PV.8498	29 March	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Letter dated 15 February 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/159)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2019/218)
S/PV.8499	1 April	The promotion and strengthening of the rule of law in the maintenance of international peace and security
		International humanitarian law
S/PV.8500	2 April	Non-Proliferation
		Supporting the Non-Proliferation Treaty ahead of the 2020 Review Conference
S/PV.8501	3 April	The situation in Mali

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8502	3 April	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti (S/2019/198)
S/PV.8503	9 April	The situation in the Central African Republic
S/PV.8504	9 April	Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees
S/PV.8505 (closed)	9 April	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara
S/PV.8506	10 April	The situation in the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela
S/PV.8507	10 April	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.8508	11 April	United Nations peacekeeping operations
		Women in peacekeeping
		Letter dated 27 March 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/275)
		Letter dated 4 April 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Germany to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/293)
S/PV.8509	12 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8510	12 April	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti (S/2019/198)
S/PV.8511	12 April	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2019/265)
S/PV.8512	15 April	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8513	17 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the African Union- United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/305)
S/PV.8514	23 April	Women and peace and security

20-09564 **41/205**

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Sexual violence in conflict
		Report of the Secretary-General on conflict-related sexual violence (S/2019/280)
		Letter dated 11 April 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Germany to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/313)
S/PV.8515	24 April	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018) (S/2019/321)
S/PV.8516	25 April	Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/136)
S/PV.8517	29 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8518	30 April	The situation concerning Western Sahara
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation concerning Western Sahara (S/2019/282)
S/PV.8519	30 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (S/2019/319)
S/PV.8520	30 April	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8521	7 May	United Nations peacekeeping operations
		Investing in peace: improving safety and performance of United Nations peacekeepers
		Letter dated 30 April 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Indonesia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/359)
S/PV.8522	8 May	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
		Letter dated 1 May 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/364)
S/PV.8523	8 May	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8524	14 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8525	15 May	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8526	16 May	Peace and Security in Africa
3.1	10 1.14	

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel (S/2019/371)
S/PV.8527	17 May	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8528	20 May	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council
S/PV.8529	20 May	Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)
S/PV.8530	21 May	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8531	21 May	The situation concerning Iraq
		Twenty-second report of the Secretary-General pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2019/352)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2421 (2018) (S/2019/365)
S/PV.8532	22 May	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8533	22 May	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on Somalia (S/2019/393)
S/PV.8534	23 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
		Report of the Secretary-General on the protection of civilians in armed conflict (S/2019/373)
		Letter dated 8 May 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Indonesia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/385)
S/PV.8535	28 May	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8536	30 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8537	31 May	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.8538	4 June	Central African region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (S/2019/430)
S/PV.8539	6 June	Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council (S/2017/507)
		Working methods of the Security Council

20-09564 **43/205**

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Letter dated 29 May 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Kuwait to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/450)
S/PV.8540	10 June	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2420 (2018) (S/2019/380)
S/PV.8541	10 June	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (S/2019/461)
S/PV.8542 (closed)	10 June	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali
S/PV.8543	11 June	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
		Missing persons in armed conflict
		Letter dated 3 June 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Kuwait to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/458)
S/PV.8544 (closed)	11 June	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/PV.8545 (closed)	11 June	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur.
S/PV.8546	12 June	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Conflict prevention and mediation
		Letter dated 31 May 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Kuwait to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/456)
S/PV.8547	12 June	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2019/454)

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8548	13 June	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		Cooperation between the Security Council and the League of Arab States
		Letter dated 31 May 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Kuwait to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/455)
S/PV.8549	14 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Special report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the strategic assessment of the African Union- United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/445)
S/PV.8550	14 June	The situation in Burundi
		Letter dated 10 June 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2019/485)
S/PV.8551	17 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 10 June 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/485)
S/PV.8552	18 June	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PV.8553	18 June	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8554	19 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8555	19 June	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2019/493)
S/PV.8556	20 June	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.8557	20 June	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8558	20 June	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in the Central African Republic (S/2019/498)
S/PV.8559	25 June	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.8560	25 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

20-09564 **45/205**

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2019/491)
S/PV.8561	25 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018) (S/2019/508)
S/PV.8562	26 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2019/467)
S/PV.8563	26 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Letter dated 6 June 2019 from the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/469)
S/PV.8564	26 June	Non-proliferation
		Letter dated 13 June 2019 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/488)
		Seventh report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015) (S/2019/492)
		Letter dated 21 June 2019 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/514)
S/PV.8565	26 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8566	27 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Special report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the strategic assessment of the African Union- United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/445)
S/PV.8567	27 June	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8568	28 June	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2019/454)
S/PV.8569	9 July	Threats to international peace and security

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Linkages between international terrorism and organized crime
		Letter dated 27 June 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Peru to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/537)
S/PV.8570	10 July	United Nations peacekeeping operations
		Strengthening triangular cooperation
		Letter dated 27 June 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Peru to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/538)
S/PV.8571	11 July	Security Council mission
		Briefing by Security Council mission to Iraq and Kuwait (27 to 30 June 2019)
S/PV.8572	15 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8573	15 July	Threats to international peace and security
		Letter dated 17 May 2019 from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/407)
S/PV.8574 (closed)	15 July	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus
S/PV.8575	16 July	Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2014/264)
S/PV.8576	17 July	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
		Letter dated 20 May 2019 from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunal addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/417)
S/PV.8577	17 July	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Implementation of the youth, peace and security agenda
		Letter dated 27 June 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Peru to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/539)
S/PV.8578	18 July	The situation in the Middle East

20-09564 **47/205**

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8579	18 July	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
		Strengthening partnerships for successful nationally- owned transitions
		Letter dated 27 June 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Peru to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/540)
S/PV.8580	19 July	Security Council mission
		Briefing by Security Council mission to Colombia (11 to 14 July 2019)
S/PV.8581	19 July	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2019/530)
S/PV.8582	19 July	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.8583	23 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8584	24 July	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2019/575)
S/PV.8585	24 July	Peace consolidation in West Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (S/2019/549)
S/PV.8586	25 July	The situation in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2019/562)
S/PV.8587	26 July	The situation in Afghanistan
S/PV.8588	29 July	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8589	30 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8590	2 August	Peace and Security in Africa
		Ebola
S/PV.8591	2 August	Children and armed conflict
		Report of the Secretary-General on children and armed conflict (S/2019/509)

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Letter dated 30 July 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Poland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/605)
S/PV.8592	7 August	Peace consolidation in West Africa
S/PV.8593	7 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8594 (closed)	8 August	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop - and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon
S/PV.8595	10 August	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8596	13 August	The promotion and strengthening of the rule of law in the maintenance of international peace and security
		International humanitarian law
		Letter dated 5 August 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Poland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/629)
S/PV.8597	20 August	Consideration of the draft report of the Security Council to the General Assembly
S/PV.8598	20 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8599	20 August	The promotion and strengthening of the rule of law in the maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.8600	20 August	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Challenges to peace and security in the Middle East
		Letter dated 6 August 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Poland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/643)
S/PV.8601	21 August	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on Somalia (S/2019/661)
S/PV.8602	22 August	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.8603	26 August	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8604	27 August	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8605	27 August	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Ninth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and

20-09564 **49/205**

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat (S/2019/612)
S/PV.8606	28 August	The situation concerning Iraq
		Twenty-third report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2019/632)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2470 (2019) (S/2019/660)
S/PV.8607	29 August	The situation in Mali
		Letter dated 6 August 2019 from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/636)
S/PV.8608	29 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8609	29 August	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018) (S/2019/674)
S/PV.8610	29 August	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 1 August 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/619)
S/PV.8611	4 September	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2019/682)
S/PV.8612	9 September	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PV.8613	10 September	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2019/703)
S/PV.8614	10 September	The situation in Guinea-Bissau
		Report of the Secretary-General on developments in Guinea-Bissau and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea-Bissau (S/2019/664)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the progress made with regard to the stabilization and restoration of constitutional order in Guinea-Bissau (S/2019/696)

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.8615	12 September	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2019/682)
S/PV.8616	12 September	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
S/PV.8617	12 September	The situation in the Central African Republic
S/PV.8618	12 September	Central African region
S/PV.8619	16 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8620	17 September	The situation in Afghanistan
S/PV.8621	18 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2019/722)
		Report of the Secretary-General on future planning for the protection of civilians sites in South Sudan (S/2019/741)
S/PV.8622	19 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8623	19 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8624	20 September	Threats to international peace and security
		Letter dated 19 September 2019 from the Permanent Representative of Iraq to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/760)
S/PV.8625	20 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8626	25 September	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		The contribution of the Collective Security Treaty Organization, the Commonwealth of Independent States and the Shanghai Cooperation Organization in countering terrorist threats
		Letter dated 13 September 2019 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/742)
S/PV.8627	26 September	Peace and security in Africa

20-09564 51/205

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Partnership to strengthen regional peace and security
		Letter dated 13 September 2019 from the Permanent Representatives of Côte d'Ivoire, Equatorial Guinea, the Russian Federation and South Africa to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/743)
S/PV.8628	30 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8629	2 October	Peace and security in Africa
		Mobilizing youth towards silencing the guns by 2020
		Letter dated 30 September 2019 from the Permanent Representative of South Africa to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/779)
S/PV.8630	3 October	The situation in the Great Lakes region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region (S/2019/783)
S/PV.8631	3 October	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Report of the Secretary-General pursuant to Security Council resolution 2437 (2018) (S/2019/711)
S/PV.8632	3 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8633	7 October	Peace and security in Africa
		The centrality of preventive diplomacy, conflict prevention and resolution
		Letter dated 2 October 2019 from the Permanent Representative of South Africa to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/786)
S/PV.8634	8 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8635	8 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8636	8 October	The situation in Mali
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Mali (S/2019/782)
S/PV.8637 (closed)	8 October	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop - and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B - Western Sahara
S/PV.8638	9 October	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2019/776)
S/PV.8639	10 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2019/780)
S/PV.8640	15 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8641	15 October	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti (S/2019/805)
S/PV.8642	17 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8643	17 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Special Report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the African Union – United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/816)
S/PV.8644	24 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (\$/2019/817)
S/PV.8645	24 October	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018) (S/2019/820)
S/PV.8646	25 October	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2019/822)
S/PV.8647	25 October	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.8648	28 October	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8649	29 October	Women and peace and security

20-09564 53/205

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Towards the successful implementation of the women, peace and security agenda: moving from commitments to accomplishments in preparation for the commemoration of the twentieth anniversary of Security Council resolution 1325 (2000)
		Report of the Secretary-General on women and peace and security (S/2019/800)
		Letter dated 8 October 2019 from the Permanent Representative of South Africa to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/801)
S/PV.8649	29 October	Women and peace and security
(Resumption 1)		Towards the successful implementation of the women, peace and security agenda: moving from commitments to accomplishments in preparation for the commemoration of the twentieth anniversary of Security Council resolution 1325 (2000)
		Report of the Secretary-General on women and peace and security (S/2019/800)
		Letter dated 8 October 2019 from the Permanent Representative of South Africa to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/801)
S/PV.8649	4 November	Women and peace and security
(Resumption 2)		Towards the successful implementation of the women, peace and security agenda: moving from commitments to accomplishments in preparation for the commemoration of the twentieth anniversary of Security Council resolution 1325 (2000)
		Report of the Secretary-General on women and peace and security (S/2019/800)
		Letter dated 8 October 2019 from the Permanent Representative of South Africa to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/801)
S/PV.8650	30 October	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		African Union
		Report of the Secretary-General on strengthening the partnership between the United Nations and the African Union on issues of peace and security in Africa, including on the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union (S/2019/759)
S/PV.8651	30 October	The situation concerning Western Sahara

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation concerning Western Sahara (S/2019/787)
S/PV.8652	30 October	The situation in Burundi
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Burundi (S/2019/837)
S/PV.8653 (closed)	31 October	Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice
S/PV.8654	31 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Special report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/816)
S/PV.8655	31 October	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Special report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (S/2019/816)
S/PV.8656	4 November	The situation in Guinea-Bissau
S/PV.8657	4 November	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.8658	5 November	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
		Letter dated 25 October 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/843)
S/PV.8659 (closed)	5 November	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8660	6 November	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8661	6 November	United Nations peacekeeping operations
		Police Commissioners
S/PV.8662 (closed)	7 November	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B - Central African Republic
S/PV.8663	14 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8664	14 November	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8665	15 November	The situation in Somalia

20-09564 55/205

Meeting record	Date	Subject
		Letter dated 1 November 2019 from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/858)*
S/PV.8666	15 November	The situation in the Central African Republic
S/PV.8667	18 November	The situation in Libya
S/PV.8668	19 November	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
		The role of reconciliation in maintaining international peace and security
		Letter dated 11 November 2019 from the Permanent Representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/871)
S/PV.8668	19 November	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
(Resumption 1)		The role of reconciliation in maintaining international peace and security
		Letter dated 11 November 2019 from the Permanent Representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2019/871)
S/PV.8669	20 November	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.8670	20 November	Peace and security in Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel (S/2019/868)
S/PV.8671	21 November	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on Somalia (S/2019/884)
S/PV.8672	22 November	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8673	22 November	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.8674	22 November	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8675	26 November	Threats to international peace and security
		Letter dated 13 November 2019 from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/878)
S/PV.8676	3 December	The situation concerning Iraq

^{*} A corrigendum (S/2019/858/Corr.1) was issued on 14 February 2020.

		Twenty-fourth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2019/865)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2470 (2019) (S/2019/903)
S/PV.8677 (closed)	3 December	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B – Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PV.8678	4 December	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation with respect to piracy and armed robbery at sea off the coast of Somalia (S/2019/867)
S/PV.8679	6 December	Central African region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (S/2019/913)
S/PV.8680 (closed)	10 December	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B – United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/PV.8681	11 December	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
		Note by the Secretary-General on the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals (S/2019/622)
		Letter dated 18 November 2019 from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/888)
S/PV.8682	11 December	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.8683	12 December	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.8684	12 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8685	16 December	Peace and Security in Africa
		Intercommunal violence and terrorism in West Africa
S/PV.8686	16 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
S/PV.8687	16 December	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2019/935)
S/PV.8688	17 December	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

20-09564 57/205

S/PV.8689	17 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2019/936)
S/PV.8690	18 December	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016) (S/2019/938)
S/PV.8691	18 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.8692	19 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Letter dated 24 October 2019 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/842)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2019/905)
S/PV.8693	19 December	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2019/923)
S/PV.8694	19 December	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018) (S/2019/949)
S/PV.8695	19 December	Non-proliferation
		Letter dated 4 December 2019 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/925)
		Eighth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015) (S/2019/934)*
		Letter dated 16 December 2019 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2019/952/Rev.1)
S/PV.8696	20 December	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.8697	20 December	The situation in the Middle East

^{*} A corrigendum (S/2019/934/Corr.1) was issued on 17 December 2019.

V Meetings of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission

Eighty-sixth session

7 October

Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia

Informal consultations/meetings

1 February; 18 April; 15 May; 3 and 15 October

Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities

Informal consultations/meetings

14 and 30 January; 11 and 20 February; 6,12 and 14 March; 5 April; 16 May; 1 and 12 July; 15 August; 5 September; 1 and 11 October; 7 and 15 November; 20 December

Joint informal consultations/meetings

30 January; 28 February; 26 April; 15 and 19 August 2019¹

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism

Formal/plenary meetings

24 January (342nd); 28 February (343rd); 8 (344th meeting) and 25 April (345th); 23 May (346th); 20 June (347th) 25 July (348th); 19 September (349th); 23 October (350th); 5 (351st) and 13 December 2019 (352nd)

Joint informal consultations/meetings

22 and 28 February; 26 April; 27 June; 2 July; 1 November

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003)

Informal consultations/meetings

9 January; 12 February

20-09564 59/205

¹ Joint informal consultations with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011).

² Joint informal meeting with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning ISIL (Da'esh) Al-Qaida and associated individuals groups undertakings and entities.

³ Joint special meeting with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning ISIL (Da'esh) Al-Qaida and associated individuals groups undertakings and entities and the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011).

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Formal/plenary meetings

1 February; 9 August

Informal consultations/meetings

25 March; 24 May; 8 July; 27 August; 2 December

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004)

Formal/plenary meetings

6 February (82nd); 4 October (83rd); 20 December (84th)

Informal consultations/meetings

19 February; 18 March; 15 April; 3 May; 28 June; 11 July; 21 August; 7 October

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan

Informal consultations/meetings

12 February; 12 April; 21 June; 16 August

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006)

Formal/plenary meetings

13 September

Informal consultations/meetings

13 and 21 February; 20 March; 26 August; 27 November; 2 December

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya

Formal/plenary meetings

30 August (3rd)

Informal consultations/meetings

8 February; 15 April; 31 May; 21 June; 12 September; 22 October, 25 November

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011)

Informal consultations/meetings

30 January; 12 March; 7 June; 11 September

Joint informal consultations/meetings

30 January; 26 April; 15 and 19 August⁴

⁴ Joint informal consultations with the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities.

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea-Bissau

Informal consultations/meetings

7 February; 11 September

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic

Formal/plenary meetings

29 January; 6 September

Informal consultations/meetings

21 January; 22 February; 22 March; 29 July; 6 August; 12 September; 18 November; 2 December

Joint informal consultations/meetings

29 July⁵

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014)

Informal consultations/meetings

18 January; 10 May; 23 August

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan

Informal consultations/meetings

8 February; 29 March; 9 and 21 August; 18 November

Joint informal consultations/meetings

21 June⁶

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) concerning Mali

Informal consultations/meetings

7 February; 12 April; 24 June; 26 July; 7 August

Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations

Meetings

25 April; 23 August; 22 October; 11 November

20-09564 61/205

Joint informal consultations with the Security Council Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict.

⁶ Joint informal consultations with the Security Council Committees established pursuant to resolutions 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan; 1970 (2011) concerning Libya; 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic.

Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa

Informal consultations/meetings

1 and 29 May; 21 June; 9 August; 2 and 4 October

Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict

Formal/plenary meetings

14 January (77th); 8 February (78th); 15 March (79th); 21 May (80th); 14 June (81st); 9 (82nd), 30 (83rd) and 31 July (84th); 16 September (85th); 14 October (86th); 8 (87th) and 15 November (88th)

Informal consultations/meetings

28 January; 4 and 5 February; 18 and 29 March; 18 April; 3, 10 June and 28 June; 31 July; 27 and 30 August; 10, 13 and 16 September; 2, 8, 11, 14 and 15 October; 18 and 21 November; 3, 6, 13 and 17 December 2019

Joint informal consultations/meetings

29 July⁷

Informal Working Group on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions

Formal/plenary meetings

22 March; 24 May; 26 July; 14 October; 12 November

Informal consultations/meetings

28 January

Informal Working Group on International Tribunals

Meetings

17 July (8576th meeting); 11 December (8681st meeting)

⁷ Joint informal consultations with the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic.

VI Reports of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

A. Governing Council of the United Nations Compensation Commission

Symbol Date submitted S/2019/802 9 October

B. Annual reports of committees

S/2019/978	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia
S/2019/980	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities
S/2019/963	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003)
S/2019/965	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2019/975	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan
S/2019/971	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006)
S/2019/972	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya
S/2019/970	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011)
S/2019/966	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea-Bissau
S/2019/973	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013) concerning the Central African Republic
S/2019/969	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014)
S/2019/967	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan
S/2019/968	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) concerning Mali

C. Annual reports of working groups

S/2019/981	Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict
S/2019/1006	Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations
S/2019/1007	Informal Working Group on International Tribunals

20-09564 63/205

VII Reports of panels and monitoring mechanisms

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to		
Analytical Support and Sanctions Me	Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team			
S/2019/50	15 January	Resolution 2368 (2017)		
S/2019/481	10 June	Resolution 2255 (2015)		
S/2019/570	15 July	Resolution 2368 (2017)		
Central African Republic: Panel of E	Experts			
S/2019/608	30 July	Resolution 2454 (2019)		
S/2019/930	6 December	Resolution 2454 (2019)		
Democratic Republic of the Congo: C	Group of Experts			
S/2019/469	6 June	Resolution 2424 (2018)		
S/2019/974	20 December	Resolution 2478 (2019)		
Democratic People's Republic of Kon	ea: Panel of Experts			
S/2019/171 and S/2019/171/Corr.1	5 March	Resolution 2407 (2018)		
S/2019/691	30 August	Resolution 2464 (2019)		
Libya: Panel of Experts				
S/2019/914	29 November	Resolution 2441 (2018)		
Mali: Panel of Experts				
S/2019/137	21 February	Resolution 2432 (2018)		
S/2019/636	6 August	Resolution 2432 (2018)		
Somalia: Panel of Experts				
S/2019/858 and S/2019/858/Corr.1	1 November	Resolution 2444 (2018)		
South Sudan: Panel of Experts				
S/2019/301	9 April	Resolution 2428 (2018)		
S/2019/897	20 November	Resolution 2471 (2019)		
Yemen: Panel of Experts				
S/2019/83	25 January	Resolution 2402 (2018)		

VIII Reports of Security Council missions

Symbol	Date	Report
S/PV.8470	26 February	Mission to West Africa (13–17 February)
S/PV.8492	27 March	Mission to the Sahel (21-25 March)
S/2019/303	10 April	Mission to Côte d'Ivoire and Guinea-Bissau (13-17 February)
S/PV.8571	11 July	Mission to Iraq and Kuwait (27-30 June)
S/2019/827	18 October	Mission to the Republic of Colombia (11-14 July)

20-09564 65/205

IX Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

Peacekeeping operation	Established by resolution	Decisions adopted during the reporting period relating to the mandate of the operation
United Nations Military Observer Group in India and Pakistan (UNMOGIP)	47 (1948)	None
United Nations Truce Supervision Organization (UNTSO)	50 (1948)	None
United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP)	186 (1964)	None
United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF)	350 (1974)	2477 (2019)
United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL)	425 (1978) 426 (1978)	2485 (2019)
United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO)	690 (1991)	2468 (2019)
United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (UNMIK)	1244 (1999)	None
African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (UNAMID)	1769 (2007)	2479 (2019)
United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO)	1925 (2010)	2463 (2019) 2478 (2019)
United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA)	1990 (2011)	2465 (2019) 2469 (2019)
United Nations Mission in South Sudan (UNMISS)	1996 (2011)	2459 (2019) 2471 (2019)
United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali (MINUSMA)	2100 (2013)	2480 (2019) 2484 (2019)
United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA)	2149 (2014)	2454 (2019) 2488 (2019)
United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti (MINUJUSTH)*	2350 (2017)	2466 (2019) 2476 (2019)

^{*} Mandate terminated on 16 October 2019, pursuant to resolution 2476 (2019).

X Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

		Decisions adopted during the reporting period relating to the mandate of the
Mission or office	Established by	mission or office
United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA)	1401 (2002)	2460 (2019) 2489 (2019)
United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI)	1500 (2003)	2470 (2019)
United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia	S/2007/280	None
United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea-Bissau (UNIOGBIS)	1876 (2009)	2458 (2019)
United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA)	2452 (2019)	2481 (2019)
United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (UNOCA)	S/2010/457	None
United Nations Office to the African Union (UNOAU)	General Assembly resolution 64/288	None
United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL)	2009 (2011)	2486 (2019)
United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNSOM)	2102 (2013)	2461 (2019) 2472 (2019)
United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (UNOWAS)	S/2016/89	None
United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia	2366 (2017)	2487 (2019)
United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti	2476 (2019)	2476 (2019)

20-09564 67/205

XI Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/6	4 January	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2019/14	7 January	Fifteenth report on the implementation of paragraph 6 of resolution 1956 (2010)
S/2019/11	7 January	Status of implementation of Security Council resolution 2451 (2018)
S/2019/19	7 January	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2019/37	11 January	United Nations operation in Cyprus
S/2019/44	14 January	African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur
S/2019/69	21 January	Status of implementation of Security Council resolution 2451 (2018)
S/2019/78	25 January	Twenty-first report pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/101	1 February	Implementation of resolution 2421 (2018)
S/2019/102	1 February	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2019/103	1 February	Eighth report on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat
S/2019/115	7 February	Developments in Guinea-Bissau and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea- Bissau
S/2019/147	15 February	Central African Republic
S/2019/157	19 February	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/191	28 February	South Sudan (1 December-26 February 2019)
S/2019/193	28 February	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2019/198	1 March	United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti
S/2019/207	5 March	Implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2423 (2018)
S/2019/218	7 March	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/229	12 March	Implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region
S/2019/237	14 March	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) (27 October 2018–17 February 2019)
S/2019/248	19 March	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2019/251	20 March	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2019/262	26 March	Situation in Mali
S/2019/265	26 March	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2019/280	29 March	Conflict-related sexual violence
S/2019/282	1 April	Situation concerning Western Sahara
S/2019/305	10 April	African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur
S/2019/321	16 April	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/319	16 April	The situation in Abyei
S/2019/322	16 April	Mission of good offices of the Secretary-General in Cyprus
S/2019/343	25 April	Twenty-ninth semi-annual report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2019/352	29 April	Twenty-second report pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/365	2 May	Implementation of resolution 2421 (2018)
S/2019/371	6 May	Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel
S/2019/373	7 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/2019/380	10 May	Implementation of resolution 2420 (2018)
S/2019/393	15 May	Somalia
S/2019/430	24 May	The situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa
S/2019/445	30 May	Special report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the strategic assessment of the African Union- United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur
S/2019/454	31 May	Situation in Mali
S/2019/461	3 June	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2019/467	6 June	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2019/491	14 June	Situation in South Sudan

20-09564 **69/205**

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/493	14 June	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2019/498	17 June	Central African Republic
S/2019/508	19 June	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/509	20 June	Children and armed conflict
S/2019/530	27 June	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2019/531	27 June	Sixteenth report on the implementation of paragraph 6 of resolution 1956 (2010)
S/2019/549	5 July	Activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel
S/2019/563	9 July	United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti
S/2019/562	10 July	United Nations operation in Cyprus
S/2019/574	17 July	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) (18 February–24 June 2019)
S/2019/575	17 July	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2019/612	31 July	Ninth report on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat
S/2019/660	5 August	Implementation of resolution 2470 (2019)
S/2019/632	6 August	Twenty-third report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/661	15 August	Somalia
S/2019/664	19 August	Developments in Guinea-Bissau and the activities of the United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea-Bissau
S/2019/674	21 August	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/682	26 August	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2019/696	29 August	Progress made with regard to the stabilization and restoration of constitutional order in Guinea-Bissau
S/2019/703	3 September	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2019/711	5 September	Implementation of resolution 2437 (2018)

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/722	10 September	Situation in South Sudan
S/2019/727	10 September	Children and armed conflict in Afghanistan
S/2019/741	12 September	Future planning for the protection of civilians sites in South Sudan
S/2019/759	19 September	Strengthening the partnership between the United Nations and the African Union on issues of peace and security in Africa, including on the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union
S/2019/774	24 September	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2019/776	27 September	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2019/783	1 October	Implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region
S/2019/782	1 October	Situation in Mali
S/2019/780	1 October	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2019/787	2 October	Situation concerning Western Sahara
S/2019/797	4 October	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2019/805	9 October	United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti
S/2019/822	15 October	Central African Republic
S/2019/820	15 October	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/819	15 October	Thirtieth semi-annual report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2019/817	15 October	The situation in Abyei
S/2019/816	15 October	Special report of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission and the Secretary-General of the United Nations on the African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur
S/2019/837	24 October	The situation in Burundi
S/2019/852	30 October	Children and armed conflict in the Central African Republic
S/2019/865	7 November	Twenty-fourth report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/867	8 November	The situation with respect to piracy and armed robbery at sea off the coast of Somalia
S/2019/868	11 November	Joint Force of the Group of Five for the Sahel

20-09564 71/205

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/883	14 November	Mission of good offices of the Secretary-General in Cyprus
S/2019/884	15 November	Report on Somalia
S/2019/889	18 November	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) (25 June–31 October 2019)
S/2019/903	22 November	Implementation of resolution 2470 (2019)
S/2019/905	26 November	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2019/913	29 November	The situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa
S/2019/923	4 December	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2019/935	10 December	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2019/934 and S/2019/934/Corr.1	10 December	Eight report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/936	11 December	Situation in South Sudan
S/2019/938	12 December	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2019/949	16 December	Implementation of Security Council resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/948	16 December	Seventeenth report on the implementation of paragraph 6 of resolution 1956 (2010)
S/2019/988	26 December	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia

XII Summary statements by the Secretary-General of matters of which the Security Council was seized

S/2019/10 and S/2019/10/Add.1-52.

20-09564 73/205

XIII Notes by the President of the Security Council issued

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/2	2 January	Bureaux of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council
S/2019/120	7 February	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2019/171 and S/2019/171/Corr.1	5 March	Report of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 1874 (2009)
S/2019/212	6 March	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/496	14 June	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/559	10 July	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/560	10 July	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/666	20 August	Adoption of the annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly
S/2019/691	30 August	Report of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 1874 (2009)
S/2019/737	30 August	Report of the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/738	10 September	Report of the Acting Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/899	21 November	Report of the Acting Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2019/900	21 November	Report of the Acting Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/901	21 November	Report of the Acting Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/902	21 November	Report of the Acting Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency concerning verification and monitoring in the Islamic Republic of Iran in the light of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/990	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the work of the Security Council (Visiting missions)
S/2019/991	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (Subsidiary bodies)
S/2019/992	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (President's monthly addendum)
S/2019/993	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (Newly elected members)
S/2019/994	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (Wrap-up sessions)
S/2019/995	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (Troop- and police-contributing countries)
S/2019/996	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (Gender)
S/2019/997	27 December	Measures to enhance the efficiency and transparency of the Security Council's work (Annual report)

20-09564 75/205

XIV Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council*

January	Dominican Republic	S/2019/910
February	Equatorial Guinea	S/2019/1015
March	France	S/2020/29
April	Germany	S/2020/29
May	Indonesia	S/2019/840
June	Kuwait	S/2019/744
July	Peru	S/2020/171
August	Poland	_
September	Russian Federation	_
October	South Africa	S/2020/192
November	United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	_
December	United States of America	_

^{*} Monthly assessments not available at the time of issuance of the present report will be posted on the Security Council website as they become available.

Part II

Questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security

Chapter 1

The situation in Cyprus

Meetings of the Council

```
8447 (17 January); 8453 (30 January); 8586 (25 July) (see also part II, chapter 20.A)
```

Consultations of the whole

23 January; 2 May; 19 July; 9 October; 21 November

Resolutions adopted

2453 (2019); 2483 (2019)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus

Resolution 186 (1964) Established

Resolution 2483 (2019) Mandate extended until 31 January 2020

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to	
S/2019/37	11 January	Resolution 186 (1964) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2430 (2018)	
S/2019/322	16 April	Resolution 2453 (2019)	
S/2019/562	10 July	Resolution 186 (1964) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2453 (2019)	
S/2019/883	14 November	Resolution 2483 (2019)	
Communications			
S/2019/24	8 January	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/33	8 January	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/82	23 January	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General	

20-09564 **77/205**

S/2019/105	31 January	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/160	19 February	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/161	19 February	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/178	22 February	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/297	8 April	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/329	17 April	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/398	13 May	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/477	10 June	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/561	10 July	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/564	11 July	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/594	23 July	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/620	31 July	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/633	1 August	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/713	6 September	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/748	13 September	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/796	4 October	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/809	11 October	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/815	11 October	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/838	23 October	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General

S/2019/839	23 October	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/853	31 October	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/872	8 November	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/881	13 November	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2019/885	14 November	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/886	14 November	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/912	27 November	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/976	20 December	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General

20-09564 **79/205**

Chapter 2

Items relating to the situation in the Middle East

A. The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

Meetings of the Council

8449 (22 January); 8466 (20 February); 8489 (26 March); 8517 (29 April); 8532 (22 May); 8557 (20 June); 8583 (23 July); 8604 (27 August); 8625 (20 September); 8648 (28 October); 8669 (20 November); 8690 (18 December)

Consultations of the whole

6, 13 and 20 February; 8 March; 22 May; 27 June; 27 August; 20 November; 18 December

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/251	20 March	Resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2019/685	26 August	General Assembly resolution 73/19
S/2019/938	12 December	Resolution 2334 (2016)
Communicat	ions	
S/2019/4	3 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/45	14 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/79	24 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/94	30 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/128	12 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/135	13 February	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/162	19 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/189	27 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/226	12 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/240	14 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/243	15 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/259	25 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/261	25 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/273	28 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/284	1 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/369	4 May	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/370	5 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 81/205

S/2019/405	16 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/459	3 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/468	6 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/480	11 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/546	2 July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/592	22 July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/626	2 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/644	8 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/646	8 August	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/649	9 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/680	23 August	Identical letters from the representative of Palestine to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/717	9 September	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/739	12 September	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/830	21 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/862	1 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/876	12 November	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/891	18 November	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/937	11 December	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

B. The situation in the Middle East

1. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Meetings of the Council

8495 (27 March); 8562 (26 June); 8680 (10 December); 8693 (19 December) (see also part II, chapter 20.B)

Consultations of the whole

17 June; 16 October; 12 December

Resolutions adopted

2477 (2019); 2503 (2019)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Truce Supervision Organization

Resolution 50 (1948) Established

(A number of military observers are assigned to the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force)

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Resolution 350 (1974) Established

Resolution 2503 (2019) Mandate extended until 30 June 2020

20-09564 83/205

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/248	19 March	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2450 (2018)
S/2019/467	6 June	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2450 (2018)
S/2019/774	24 September	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2477 (2019)
S/2019/923	4 December	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2477 (2019)
Communications		
S/2019/277	29 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/545	1 July	Identical letters from the representative of

2. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

Council

Meetings of the Council

8594 (8 August); 8610 (29 August) (see also part II, chapter 20.C)

Consultations of the whole

27 March; 22 July; 13 August; 25 November

Resolutions adopted

2485 (2019)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Truce Supervision Organization

Resolution 50 (1948) Established

United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon

Resolutions 425 (1978) Established and 426 (1978)

Resolution 2485 (2019)

Mandate extended until 31 August 2020

the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/237	14 March	Resolution 1701 (2006)
S/2019/574	17 July	Resolution 1701 (2006)
S/2019/889	18 November	Resolution 1701 (2006)
Communicat	ions	
S/2019/36	10 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/47	14 January	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/109	28 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/132	11 February	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/230	28 February	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/235	14 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/283	26 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/336	23 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/378	25 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/384	13 May	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/471	28 May	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/542	28 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 **85/205**

S/2019/579	10 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/565	12 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/634	24 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/617	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/619	1 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/665	19 August	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/675	19 August	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/683	25 August	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/688	27 August	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/704	3 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/708	3 September	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/716	7 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/754	16 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/770	18 September	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/821	7 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/836	23 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/875	28 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/892	18 November	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/920	2 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/953	26 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

3. Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)

Consultations of the whole

14 May; 18 October

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/343	25 April	Resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2019/819	15 October	Resolution 1559 (2004)
Communications		
S/2019/379	10 May	Identical letters from the representative of Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

4. Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East

(a) Syrian Arab Republic

Meetings of the Council

8454 (30 January); 8471 (26 February); 8475 (28 February); 8493 (27 March); 8515 (24 April); 8520 (30 April); 8527 (17 May); 8535 (28 May); 8553 (18 June); 8561 (25 June); 8567 (27 June); 8589 (30 July); 8593 (7 August); 8609 (29 August); 8622 (19 September); 8623 (19 September); 8628 (30 September); 8635 (8 October); 8645 (24 October); 8659 (5 November); 8664 (14 November); 8674 (22 November); 8694 (19 December); 8696 (20 December); 8697 (20 December)

20-09564 87/205

Consultations of the whole

8 and 30 January; 6 and 26 February; 6 March; 4 April; 10, 13 and 29 May; 13 and 27 June; 3,18 and 30 July; 9, 14, 16 and 29 August; 4 and 30 September; 10, 11, 16 and 24 October; 22 November; 4, 18 and 20 December

Draft resolutions considered at a formal meeting and not adopted

S/2019/756 and S/2019/757 (8623rd meeting, 19 September); S/2019/961 and S/2019/962 (8697th meeting, 20 December)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/157	19 February	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/321	16 April	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/508	19 June	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/674	21 August	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/820	15 October	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/854	31 October	Resolution 2118 (2013)
S/2019/915	29 November	Resolution 2118 (2013)
S/2019/949	16 December	Resolutions 2139 (2014), 2165 (2014), 2191 (2014), 2258 (2015), 2332 (2016), 2393 (2017), 2401 (2018) and 2449 (2018)
S/2019/1016	30 December	Resolution 2118 (2013)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/12

Communications

S/2019/15 7 January Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/18	7 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/25	8 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/41	12 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/42	11 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/52	15 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/55	17 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/64	20 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/66	21 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/70	21 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/85	25 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/87	28 January	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/91	28 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/93	30 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/104	1 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/116	6 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

20-09564 **89/205**

S/2019/124	8 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/125	8 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/130	12 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/131	12 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/138	13 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/146	15 February	Identical letters from the representatives of Egypt, France, Germany, Jordan, Saudi Arabia, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and the United States of America to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/149	15 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/155	18 February	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Turkey to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/158	19 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/166	19 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/174	22 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/181	26 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/184	26 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

S/2019/188	27 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/196	28 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/201	1 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/202	1 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/203	4 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/205	4 March	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/219	8 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/221	11 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/222	12 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/233	13 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/234	13 March	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/242	15 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/244	15 March	Letter from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General
S/2019/246	19 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/250	19 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 **91/205**

S/2019/256	22 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/258	22 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/267	26 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/277	29 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/279	28 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/281	29 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/295	3 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/304	10 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/309	11 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/317	12 April	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/318	12 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/208	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/325	18 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/337	24 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/341	24 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/347	26 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/353	30 April	Letter from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/354	30 April	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/355	29 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/390	2 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/379	10 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/383	10 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/395	15 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/403	16 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/404	16 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/415	20 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/418	20 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/438	24 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/443	29 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/447	30 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 **93/205**

S/2019/451	30 May	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/460	31 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/462	4 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/474	7 June	Letter from the representatives of China and the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2019/479	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/495	14 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/497	14 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/501	17 June	Letter from the representative of France to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/515	21 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/518	24 June	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/535	27 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/541	27 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/543	28 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/550	5 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/554	9 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/566	12 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/568	12 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/569	15 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/572	16 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/585	19 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/587	19 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/599	26 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/601	25 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/600	26 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/615	31 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/628	2 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/639	6 August	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/648	8 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/651	9 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 **95/205**

S/2019/653	9 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/662	15 July	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/670	20 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/677	22 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/681	23 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/697	28 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/710	4 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/715	6 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/730	10 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/750	16 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/755	16 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/753	17 September	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Turkey to the Secretary-General
S/2019/763	20 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/775	26 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/784	1 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/789	2 October	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/804	9 October	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/806	10 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/818	14 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/826	17 October	Letter from the representatives of Turkey and the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/829	18 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/831	21 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/833	22 October	Letter from the representatives of the Russian Federation and Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/835	23 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/850	29 October	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/856	31 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/887	15 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/893	18 November	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 **97/205**

S/2019/898	20 November	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/919	2 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/922	3 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/929	5 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/947	13 December	Letter from the representatives of the Islamic Republic of Iran, the Russian Federation and Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/958	18 December	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/960	18 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/964	18 December	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/982	20 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2019/987	24 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

(b) Yemen

Meetings of the Council

8441 (9 January); 8444 (16 January); 8464 (19 February); 8469 (26 February); 8512 (15 April); 8525 (15 May); 8551 (17 June); 8572 (15 July); 8578 (18 July); 8598 (20 August); 8608 (29 August); 8619 (16 September); 8642 (17 October); 8672 (22 November)

Consultations of the whole

9 and 31 January; 19 February; 13 March; 15 April; 15 May; 17 June; 18 July; 20 August; 16 September; 17 October; 22 November; 12 December

Resolutions adopted

2452 (2019); 2456 (2019); 2481 (2019)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/11	7 January	Resolution 2451 (2018)
S/2019/69	21 January	Resolution 2451 (2018)
S/2019/453	3 June	Resolution 1612 (2005)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/9

Symbol

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Yemen Date submitted

S/2019/83	25 January	Resolution 2402 (2018)
Communicat	ions	
S/2019/29	9 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/40	11 January	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/51	15 January	Letter from the representatives of Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates and Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/83	25 January	Letter from the Panel of Experts on Yemen established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2140 (2014) to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/99	31 January	Letter from the representatives of Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates and Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/195	1 March	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/206	4 March	Letter from the representatives of Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates and Yemen to the President of the Security Council

Pursuant to

20-09564 99/205

S/20	019/220	8 March	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/247	18 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/253	20 March	Letter from the representatives of Germany, Peru and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/20	019/291	4 April	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/299	8 April	Letter from the representatives of Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates and Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/386	13 May	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/485	10 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/489	13 June	Letter from the Permanent Representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/494	14 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/20	019/534	25 June	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/647	8 August	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/678	23 August	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/698	29 August	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/706	3 September	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/778	30 September	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/20	019/823	14 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/904	21 November	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/969	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014) addressed to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 101/205

Chapter 3

The situation concerning Western Sahara

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8518 (30 April); 8637 (8 October); 8651 (30 October) (see also part II, chapter 20.D)

Consultations of the whole

29 January; 10 April; 16 October

Resolutions adopted

Symbol

2468 (2019); 2494 (2019)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara

Resolution 690 (1991)	Established
Resolution 2468 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2019
Resolution 2494 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2020

Pursuant to

Reports of the Secretary-General

Date submitted

-			
S/201	9/282	1 April	Resolution 2440 (2018)
S/201	9/787	2 October	Resolution 2468 (2019)
Comr	nunicati	ons	
S/201	9/23	8 January	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/201	9/35	10 January	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/201	9/63	18 January	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/201	9/271	28 March	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/201	9/298	8 April	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/201	9/348	26 April	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/201	9/350	29 April	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/351	29 April	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/424	22 May	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/500	14 June	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/507	19 June	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/523	24 June	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/590	22 July	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/659	13 August	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/746	13 September	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/795	4 October	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/824	15 October	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/906	26 November	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/924	4 December	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/932	9 December	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 103/205

Chapter 4

United Nations peacekeeping operations

Meetings of the Council

8508 (11 April); 8521 (7 May); 8552 (18 June); 8570 (10 July); 8612 (9 September); 8661 (6 November)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/4

Communications

S/2019/275	27 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/293	4 April	Letter from the representative of Germany to the Secretary-General
S/2019/359	30 April	Letter from the representative of Indonesia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/538	27 June	Letter from the representative of Peru to the Secretary-General
S/2019/576	10 July	Letter from the representative of Indonesia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/1002	30 December	Letter from the representative of Indonesia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/1006	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 5

The situation in Somalia

Meetings of the Council

8440 (3 January); 8494 (27 March); 8533 (22 May); 8537 (31 May); 8601 (21 August); 8647 (25 October); 8665 (15 November); 8671 (21 November); 8678 (4 December)

Consultations of the whole

3 and 4 January; 7 and 25 February; 21 November

Resolutions adopted

2461 (2019); 2472 (2019); 2498 (2019); 2500 (2019)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia

Resolution 2102 (2013)	Established for an initial period of 12 months
Resolution 2461 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 March 2020

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to	
S/2019/393	15 May	Resolutions 2431 (2018) and 2461 (2019)	
S/2019/661	15 August	Resolutions 2431 (2018) and 2461 (2019)	
S/2019/867	8 November	Resolution 2442 (2018)	
S/2019/884	15 November	Resolution 2461 (2019) and 2472 (2019)	
Communications			
S/2019/140	11 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/141	14 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General	
S/2019/255	20 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/372	6 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/396	9 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	
S/2019/388	10 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council	

20-09564 105/205

S/2019/399	15 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/435	17 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/436	24 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/440	24 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/616	30 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/671	19 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/799	7 October	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/858	1 November	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/921	3 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/977	16 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/978	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Somalia to the President of the Security Council

Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia

The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina

Meetings of the Council

8522 (8 May); 8658 (5 November)

Resolutions

2496 (2019)

Communications

S/2019/364	1 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/751	16 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/843	25 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)

Meetings of the Council

8459 (7 February); 8541 (10 June); 8655 (31 October)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo

Resolution 1244 (1999) Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/102	1 February	Resolution 1244 (1999)
S/2019/461	3 June	Resolution 1244 (1999)
S/2019/797	4 October	Resolution 1244 (1999)
Communications		

S/2019/120	7 February	Note by the President
S/2019/153	18 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/873	8 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 107/205

The question concerning Haiti

Meetings of the Council

8502 (3 April); 8510 (12 April); 8559 (25 June); 8641 (15 October)

Resolutions adopted

2466 (2019); 2476 (2019)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti

Resolution 2350 (2017) Established

Resolution 2466 (2019) Mandate extended until 15 October 2019

United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti

Resolution 2476 (2019) Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/198	1 March	Resolution 2410 (2018)
S/2019/563	9 July	Resolution 2466 (2019)
S/2019/805	9 October	Resolution 2466 (2019)
Communications		
S/2019/387 and S/2019/387/Corr.1	13 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
C/2010/911	17 Contombor	I attar from the Constant Constal to the

S/2019/811

17 September Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/812

11 October Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation in Burundi

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8465 (19 February); 8550 (14 June); 8652 (30 October);

Consultations of the whole

14 June; 30 October

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol Date submitted Pursuant to

S/2019/837 24 October Resolution 2303 (2016)

20-09564 109/205

The situation in Afghanistan

Meetings of the Council

8481 (11 March); 8485 (15 March); 8555 (19 June); 8587 (26 July); 8613 (10 September); 8620 (17 September); 8687 (16 December)

Consultations of the whole

11 March; 16 September; 16 December

Resolutions adopted

2460 (2019); 2489 (2019)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan

Resolution 1401 (2002)	Established
Resolution 2460 (2019)	Mandate extended until 17 September 2019
Resolution 2489 (2019)	Mandate extended until 17 September 2020

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/193	28 February	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2405 (2018)
S/2019/493	14 June	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2460 (2019)
S/2019/703 and S/2019/703/ Corr.1	3 September	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2460 (2019)
S/2019/727	10 September	Security Council resolution 1612 (2005)
S/2019/935	10 December	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2489 (2019)
Communicati	ons	
S/2019/150	15 February	Letter from the representative of Afghanistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/175	22 February	Letter from the representative of Afghanistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/374	2 May	Letter from the representatives of China and the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

S/2019/376	9 May	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/410	14 May	Letter from the representative of Afghanistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/602	26 July	Letter from the representatives of China, Pakistan, the Russian Federation and the United States of America to the Secretary-General
S/2019/684	22 August	Letter from the representative of Afghanistan to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 111/205

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

Meetings of the Council

8576 (17 July); 8681 (11 December)

Communications

S/2019/59	18 January	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/84	21 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/107	29 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/108	4 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/170	19 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/417	20 May	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/622	1 August	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/888	18 November	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/999	11 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1000	27 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/1007	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Informal Working Group on International Tribunals addressed to the President of the Security Council

The situation in the Great Lakes region

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8491 (26 March); 8630 (3 October)

Consultations of the whole

3 October

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/229	12 March	Resolution 2409 (2018)
S/2019/783	1 October	Resolution 2463 (2019)
Communications		
S/2019/67	17 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/68	21 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

20-09564 113/205

The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meetings of the Council

```
8443 (11 January); 8486 (18 March); 8483 (14 March); 8498 (29 March); 8563 (26 June); 8584 (24 July); 8638 (9 October); 8677 (3 December); 8692 (19 December) (see also part II, chapter 20.E)
```

Consultations of the whole

4, 11 and 30 January; 18 March; 9 October; 13 and 26 November; 6 December

Resolutions adopted

```
2463 (2019); 2478 (2019); 2502 (2019)
```

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Resolution 1925 (2010)	Established
Resolution 2463 (2019)	Mandate extended until 20 December 2019
Resolution 2502 (2019)	Mandate extended until 20 December 2020

Reports of the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/469	6 June	Resolution 2424 (2018)
S/2019/974	20 December	Resolution 2478 (2019)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/6	4 January	Resolution 2409 (2018)
S/2019/218	7 March	Resolution 2409 (2018)
S/2019/229	12 March	Resolution 2409 (2018)
S/2019/575	17 July	Resolution 2463 (2019)
S/2019/776	27 September	Resolution 2463 (2019)
S/2019/783	1 October	Resolution 2463 (2019)
S/2019/905	26 November	Resolution 2463 (2019)

Communications

S/2019/9	2 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/159	15 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/505	18 June	Letter from the representatives of Angola, the Democratic Republic of the Congo and Rwanda to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/607	29 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/613	19 July	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the Secretary-General
S/2019/870	8 November	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/954	17 December	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 115/205

The situation in the Central African Republic

Meetings of the Council in 2019

```
8455 (31 January); 8467 (21 February); 8503 (9 April); 8558 (20 June); 8617 (12 September); 8646 (25 October); 8662 (7 November) (see also part II, chapter 20.F)
```

Consultations of the whole

7 and 21 February; 20 June; 25 October

Resolutions adopted

2454 (2019); 2488 (2019)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/3

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic

Resolution 2149 (2014)	Established until 30 April 2015
Resolution 2454 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 January 2020

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/608	30 July	Resolution 2454 (2019)
S/2019/930	6 December	Resolution 2454 (2019)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/147	15 February	Resolution 2448 (2018)
S/2019/498	17 June	Resolution 2448 (2018)
S/2019/822	15 October	Resolution 2448 (2018)
S/2019/852	30 October	Resolution 1612 (2005)

Communications				
S/2019/76	23 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
S/2019/145	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/167	20 February	Letter from the Chair of the Central African Republic configuration of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/119	6 February	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/210	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/294	4 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/609	26 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/608	30 July	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic extended pursuant to resolution 2454 (2019) to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/846	28 October	Letter from the Chair of the Central African Republic configuration of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/855	31 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/930	6 December	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic extended pursuant to resolution 2454 (2019) to the President of the Security Council		
S/2019/1008	31 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President		

of the Security Council

20-09564 117/205

Children and armed conflict

Meetings of the Council

8591 (2 August)

Consultations of the whole

22 May

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/453	3 June	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2019/509	20 June	Resolution 2427 (2018)
S/2019/727	10 September	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2019/852	30 October	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2019/984	23 December	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2019/1017	31 December	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
Communications		
S/2019/92	29 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/605	30 July	Letter from the representative of Poland to the Secretary-General
S/2019/702	30 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/719	9 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/730	10 September	Letter from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/981	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict to the President of the Security Council

The situation in Guinea-Bissau

Meetings of the Council

8474 (28 February); 8614 (10 September); 8656 (4 November)

Consultations of the whole

10 and 31 October; 11 November

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/13

Resolutions adopted

2458 (2019)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Integrated Peacebuilding Office in Guinea-Bissau

Resolution 1876 (2009) Established

Resolution 2458 (2019) Mandate extended until 28 February 2020

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/115	7 February	Resolution 2404 (2018)
S/2019/664	19 August	Resolution 2458 (2019)
S/2019/696	29 August	Resolution 2458 (2019)
Communications		
S/2019/596	23 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/597	25 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/851	30 October	Letter from the Chair of the Guinea-Bissau configuration of the Peacebuilding Commission addressed to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/966	18 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea- Bissau addressed to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 119/205

Protection of civilians in armed conflict

Meetings of the Council in 2018

8534 (23 May); 8543 (11 June); 8556 (20 June)

Resolutions adopted

2474 (2019); 2475 (2019)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/373	7 May	Presidential statement S/PRST/2018/18 and resolutions 2286 (2016) and 2417 (2018)
S/2019/463	10 June	General Assembly resolution 60/1
Communications		
S/2019/100	1 February	Letter from the representatives of Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Switzerland, the United Kingdom and Uruguay to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/385	8 May	Letter from the representative of Indonesia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/458	3 June	Letter from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General
S/2019/476	7 June	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary- General
S/2019/586	5 July	Letter from the representative of Indonesia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/588	19 July	Letter from the representative of Indonesia to the Secretary-General

Women and peace and security

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8514 (23 April); 8649 (29 October and 4 November (resumed))

Resolutions adopted

2467 (2019); 2493 (2019)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/280	29 March	Resolutions 1820 (2008), 1888 (2009), 1960 (2010) and 2106 (2013)
S/2019/800	9 October	Presidential statement S/PRST/2010/22 and resolutions 1325 (2000) and 2122 (2013)
Communications		
S/2019/39	10 January	Letter from the representatives of Germany, Peru and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/136	7 February	Letter from the representatives of Germany, Peru and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/313	11 April	Letter from the representative of Germany to the Secretary-General
S/2019/326	18 April	Letter from the representative of Namibia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/363	2 May	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/377	9 May	Letter from the representatives of Belgium, the Dominican Republic, France, Germany, Peru, Poland and the United Kingdom to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 121/205

S/2019/513	18 June	Letter from the representatives of Canada, Germany, Namibia and Uruguay to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/591	22 July	Letter from the representatives of Germany, Peru and the United Kingdom to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/845	28 October	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council

Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice

Meetings of the Council

8653 (31 October)

20-09564 123/205

Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe

Meetings of the Council

8479 (8 March)

Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B

A. United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus

Meetings of the Council

```
8447 (17 January); 8574 (15 July) (see also part II, chapter 1)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8447; S/PV.8574

B. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Meetings of the Council

```
8544 (11 June); 8680 (10 December) (see also part II, chapter 2.B.1)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8544; S/PV.8680

C. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon

Meetings of the Council

```
8594 (8 August) (see also part II, chapter 2.B.2)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8594

D. United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara

Meetings of the Council

```
8505 (9 April); 8637 (8 October)
(see also part II, chapter 3)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8505; S/PV.8637

E. United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meetings of the Council

```
8483 (14 March) (see also part II, chapter 12)
```

20-09564 125/205

Official communiqués

S/PV.8483

F. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic

Meetings of the Council

```
8662 (7 November)
(see also part II, chapter 13)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8662

G. African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur

Meetings of the Council

```
8545 (11 June)
(see also part II, chapter 26)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8545

H. United Nations Mission in South Sudan

Meetings of the Council

```
8478 (5 March) (see also part II, chapter 26)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8478

I. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali

Meetings of the Council

```
8542 (10 June) (see also part II, chapter 39)
```

Official communiqués

S/PV.8542

Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8460 (11 February); 8496 (28 March); 8605 (27 August); 8686 (16 December)

Consultations of the whole

16 December

Resolutions adopted

2462 (2019); 2501 (2019)

Reports of the Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/50	15 January	Resolution 2368 (2017)
S/2019/394	15 May	Resolution 2368 (2017)
S/2019/481	10 June	Resolution 2255 (2015)
S/2019/570	15 July	Resolution 2368 (2017)
S/2019/650	8 August	Resolution 2255 (2015)
S/2019/736	12 September	Resolution 2368 (2017)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/103	1 February	Resolution 2368 (2017)
S/2019/612	31 July	Resolution 2368 (2017)

Communications

Communications		
S/2019/43	14 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2019/50	15 January	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 127/205

S/2019/97	31 January	Letter from the representative of Equatorial Guinea to the Secretary-General
S/2019/98	31 January	Letter from the representative of Equatorial Guinea to the Secretary-General
S/2019/239	14 March	Letter from the representative of France to the Secretary-General
S/2019/394	15 May	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/481	10 June	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/537	27 June	Letter from the representative of Peru to the Secretary-General

Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

Meetings of the Council

8688 (17 December)

20-09564 129/205

Security Council mission

Meetings of the Council

8470 (26 February); 8492 (27 March); 8571 (11 July); 8580 (19 July)

Reports of Security Council missions

S/PV.8470	26 February	Mission to West Africa (13–17 February)
S/PV.8492	27 March	Mission to the Sahel (21–25 March)
S/2019/303	10 April	Mission to Côte d'Ivoire and Guinea- Bissau (13–17 February)
S/PV.8571	11 July	Mission to Iraq and Kuwait (27–30 June)
S/2019/827	18 October	Mission to the Republic of Colombia (11–14 July)
Communications		
S/2019/123	8 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/252	20 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/533	27 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/557	10 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/825	16 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General

Central African region

Meetings of the Council

8538 (4 June); 8618 (12 September); 8679 (6 December)

Consultations of the whole

4 June; 14 August; 6 December

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/10

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa

S/2010/457 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/430	24 May	Presidential statement S/PRST/2018/17 and resolution 2349 (2017)
S/2019/913	29 November	Presidential statement S/PRST/2018/17 and resolution 2349 (2017)
Communications		
S/2019/111	31 January	Letter from the representative of Chad to the Secretary-General
S/2019/505	18 June	Letter from the representatives of Angola, Democratic Republic of the Congo and Rwanda to the President of the Security Council
S/2010/613	19 July	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the Secretary-General
S/2019/625	1 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 131/205

Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction*

Meetings of the Council

8487 (19 March)

^{*} Resolution 1540 (2004) was adopted under this agenda item.

Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

Meetings of the Council

8446 (17 January); 8458 (7 February); 8468 (25 February); 8478 (5 March); 8480 (8 March); 8484 (15 March); 8490 (26 March); 8509 (12 April); 8513 (17 April); 8519 (30 April); 8524 (14 May); 8536 (30 May); 8545 (11 June); 8549 (14 June); 8554 (19 June); 8565 (26 June); 8566 (27 June); 8603 (26 August); 8621 (18 September); 8632 (3 October); 8634 (8 October); 8640 (15 October); 8643 (17 October); 8644 (24 October); 8684 (12 December); 8691 (18 December)

(see also part II, chapter 20.G and chapter 20.H)

Consultations of the whole

25 February; 8 March; 12 and 30 April; 4, 14 and 25 June; 18 September; 17 October; 6 November; 17 December

Resolutions adopted

2455 (2019); 2459 (2019); 2465 (2019); 2469 (2019); 2471 (2019); 2479 (2019); 2492 (2019)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/11

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur

Resolution 1769 (2007)	Established
Resolution 2455 (2019)	Mandate extended until 12 March 2020
Resolution 2479 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2019

United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei

Resolution 1990 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2465 (2019)	Mandate modification extended until 15 October 2019
Resolution 2469 (2019)	Mandate extended until 15 November 2019
Resolution 2492 (2019)	Mandate modification extended until 15 November 2019

United Nations Mission in South Sudan

Resolution 1996 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2459 (2019)	Mandate extended until 15 March 2020
Resolution 2471 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 May 2020

20-09564 133/205

Reports of the Panel of Experts on South Sudan

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/34	10 January	Resolution 1591 (2005)
S/2019/301	9 April	Resolution 2428 (2018)
S/2019/897	20 November	Resolution 2471 (2019)
Reports of the Se	cretary-General	
Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/44	14 January	Resolution 2429 (2018)
S/2019/191	28 February	Resolution 2406 (2018)
S/2019/305	10 April	Resolution 2429 (2018)
S/2019/319	16 April	Resolution 2445 (2018)
S/2019/445	30 May	Resolution 2429 (2018)
S/2019/491	14 June	Resolution 2459 (2019)
S/2019/722	10 September	Resolution 2459 (2019)
S/2019/741	12 September	Resolution 2459 (2019)
S/2019/816	15 October	Resolution 2479 (2019)
S/2019/817	15 October	Resolution 2469 (2019)
S/2019/936	11 December	Resolution 2459 (2019)
Communications		
S/2019/3	3 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/34	10 January	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/72	22 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/92	29 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/110	4 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/142	12 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/143	14 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/156	15 February	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/204	4 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/217	7 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/227	8 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/228	12 March	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/232	11 March	Letter from the representatives of Germany, Peru and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland
S/2019/224	12 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/249	18 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/254	20 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/260	25 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/301	9 April	Letter from the Panel of Experts on South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/338	23 April	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/366	29 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/367	2 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/426	21 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 135/205

S/2019/427	23 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/511	14 June	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/517	17 June	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/544	2 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/598	25 July	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/731	5 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/732	11 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
S/2019/768	20 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/790	7 October	Letter from the representative of South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/861	31 October	Letter from the representative of South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/896	19 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/897	20 November	Letter from the Panel of Experts on South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/967	17 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/975	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning Sudan to the President of the Security Council

Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8579 (18 July); 8668 (19 November)

Communications

S/2019/73	17 January	Identical letters from the President of the Economic and Social Council and the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/88	29 January	Report of the Peacebuilding Commission on its twelfth session
S/2019/167	20 February	Letter from the Chair of the Central African Republic configuration of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/446	30 May	Letter from the representative of Germany to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/567	12 July	Letter from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/857	31 October	Letter from the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council to all Permanent Representatives and Permanent Observers
S/2019/943	11 December	Letter from the representative of Côte d'Ivoire to the Secretary-General
S/2019/950	16 December	Letter from the representative of the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 137/205

The situation concerning Iraq

Meetings of the Council in 2019

```
8462 (13 February); 8531 (21 May); 8606 (28 August); 8676 (3 December) (see also part II, chapter 23)
```

Consultations of the whole

13 February; 21 May; 28 August; 3 December

Resolutions adopted

2470 (2019)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq

Resolution 1500 (2003)	Established
Resolution 2470 (2019)	Mandate extended until 31 May 2020

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/14	7 January	Resolution 1956 (2010)
S/2019/78	25 January	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/101	1 February	Resolution 2421 (2018)
S/2019/352	29 April	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/365	2 May	Resolution 2421 (2018)
S/2019/531	27 June	Resolution 1956 (2010)
S/2019/660	5 August	Resolution 2470 (2019)
S/2019/632	6 August	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/865	7 November	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2019/948	16 December	Resolution 1956 (2010)

Communications

S/2019/16	7 January	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/81	25 January	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/148	15 February	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/414	14 May	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General
S/2019/642	7 August	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/720	5 September	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/723	6 September	Letter from the representative of Turkey to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/760	19 September	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/960	18 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003) to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 139/205

Threats to international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

8456 (4 February); 8569 (9 July); 8573 (15 July); 8582 (19 July); 8602 (22 August); 8624 (20 September); 8675 (26 November)

Consultations of the whole

16 December

Resolutions adopted

2482 (2019); 2490 (2019)

Communications

S/2019/407	17 May	Letter from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/537	27 June	Letter from the representative of Peru to the Secretary-General
S/2019/760	19 September	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/878	13 November	Letter from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant to the President of the Security Council

Non-proliferation

Meetings of the Council

8564 (26 June); 8500 (2 April); 8695 (19 December)

Consultations of the whole

13 May

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/492	13 June	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2019/934 and S/2019/934/Corr.1	10 December	Resolution 2231 (2015)

Reports of the Security Council Facilitator

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/514	21 June	Resolution 2231 (2015) and S/2016/44
S/2019/952 and S/2019/952/Rev. 1	17 December	Resolution 2231 (2015) and S/2016/44
Communications		
S/2019/49	14 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/62	18 January	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/177	22 February	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/185	26 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/212	6 March	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/216	7 March	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/270	25 March	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General

20-09564 141/205

S/2019/288	2 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the
		President of the Security Council
S/2019/315	12 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/339	18 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/429	23 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/452	31 May	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/457	3 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/482	11 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/488	13 June	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/496	14 June	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/520	24 June	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the Secretary- General
S/2019/524	25 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/559	10 July	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/560	10 July	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/737	12 September	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/738	12 September	Note by the President of the Security Council

S/2019/863	4 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/895	19 November	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/899	21 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/900	21 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/901	21 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/902	21 November	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/911	21 November	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2019/907	26 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/909	26 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2019/925	6 December	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/926	4 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/928	5 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

20-09564 143/205

Peace consolidation in West Africa

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8442 (10 January); 8585 (24 July); 8592 (7 August)

(see also part II, chapter 23)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/7

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel

S/2016/89 Established

Date submitted

S/2019/1009 Mandate extended to 31 January 2020

Pursuant to

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol

S/2019/549	5 July	Resolution 2349 (2017)
S/2019/1005	30 December	Resolution 2349 (2017)
Communications		
S/2019/123	8 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2019/890	15 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/950	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1009	19 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1010	27 December	Letter from President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation in Myanmar

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8477 (28 February)

Consultations of the whole

16 January; 28 February; 20 March; 2 July; 21 August

Communications

S/2019/591	22 July	Letter from the representatives of Germany, Peru and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2019/676	22 August	Letter from the representative of Myanmar to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/719	9 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

20-09564 145/205

Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8507 (10 April); 8682 (11 December)

Consultations of the whole

25 February; 30 May; 1, 27 and 29 August; 8 October; 13 November; 4 December

Resolutions adopted

2464 (2019)

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/171 and S/2019/171/Corr.1	5 March	Resolution 2407 (2018)
S/2019/691	30 August	Resolution 2464 (2019)
Communications		
S/2019/60	17 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/171 and S/2019/171/Corr.1	5 March	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/346	25 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/409	16 May	Letter from the representative of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea to the Secretary-General
S/2019/466	6 June	Letter from the representative of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea to the Secretary-General
S/2019/548	3 July	Letter from the representative of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea to the Secretary-General
S/2019/691	30 August	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/971	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006) to the President of the Security Council

Maintenance of international peace and security

A. General issues

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8631 (3 October); 8673 (22 November)

Resolutions adopted

2491 (2019)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/14

Communications

S/2019/134 1 February Letter from the representative of

Austria to the President of the

Security Council

B. Addressing the impacts of climate-related disasters on international peace and security

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8451 (25 January)

Presidential statements

Communications

S/2019/1 2 January Letter from the representative of

Dominican Republic to the Secretary-

General

S/2019/113 4 February Letter from the representative of the

Dominican Republic to the Secretary-

General

C. Transnational organized crime at sea as a threat to international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

8457 (5 February)

Communications

S/2019/98 31 January Letter from the representative of

Equatorial Guinea to the Secretary-

General

20-09564 147/205

D. Conflict prevention and mediation

Meetings of the Council

8546 (12 June)

Communications

S/2019/456 31 May Letter from the representative of

Kuwait to the Secretary-General

E. Implementation of the youth, peace and security agenda

Meetings of the Council

8577 (17 July)

Communications

S/2019/539 27 June Letter from the representative of Peru

to the Secretary-General

F. Challenges to peace and security in the Middle East

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8600 (20 August)

Communications

S/2019/643 6 August Letter from the representative of

Poland to the Secretary-General

Peace and security in Africa

A. General issues

Meetings of the Council

8526 (16 May); 8657 (4 November); 8670 (20 November); 8683 (12 December)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Office to the African Union

General Assembly resolution 64/288 Established

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/15

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/371	6 May	Security Council resolution 2391 (2017)
S/2019/645	8 August	General Assembly resolution 72/311
S/2019/868	11 November	Security Council resolution 2391 (2017)
Communications		
S/2019/154	18 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

B. Ebola

Meetings of the Council

8590 (2 August)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/6

C. Partnership to strengthen regional peace and security

Meetings of the Council

8627 (26 September)

20-09564 149/205

Consultations of the whole

Communications

S/2019/743 13 September Letter from the representatives of

Côte d'Ivoire, Equatorial Guinea, the Russian Federation and South Africa

to the Secretary-General

D. Mobilizing youth towards silencing the guns by 2020

Meetings of the Council

8629 (2 October)

Communications

S/2019/779 30 September Letter from the representative of

South Africa to the Secretary-General

E. The centrality of preventive diplomacy, conflict prevention and resolution

Meetings of the Council

8633 (7 October)

Communications

S/2019/786 2 October Letter from the representative of

South Africa to the Secretary-General

F. Intercommunal violence and terrorism in West Africa

Meetings of the Council

8685 (16 December)

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8473 (27 February); 8482 (12 March); 8548 (13 June); 8626 (25 September); 8650 (30 October)

Resolutions adopted

2457 (2019)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/5

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/759	19 September	Presidential statement S/PRST/2014/27
Communications		
S/2019/169	13 February	Letter from the representative of Equatorial Guinea to the Secretary- General
S/2019/455	31 May	Letter from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General
S/2019/695	28 August	Identical letters from the Secretary- General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/742	13 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2019/943	11 December	Letter from the representative of Côte d'Ivoire to the Secretary-General

20-09564 151/205

The situation in Libya

Meetings of the Council

8448 (18 January); 8488 (20 March); 8523 (8 May); 8530 (21 May); 8540 (10 June); 8588 (29 July); 8595 (10 August); 8611 (4 September); 8615 (12 September); 8660 (6 November); 8667 (18 November)

Consultations of the whole

20 March; 5, 10 and 18 April; 10 May; 3 and 29 July; 4 September; 16 October; 18 November

Resolutions adopted

2473 (2019); 2486 (2019)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Support Mission in Libya

Resolution 2009 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2486 (2019)	Mandate extended until 17 September 2020

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Libya

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/914	29 November	Resolution 1973 (2011)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/19	7 January	Resolution 2434 (2018)
S/2019/380	10 May	Resolution 2420 (2018)
S/2019/682	26 August	Resolution 2434 (2018)

Communications		
S/2019/5	2 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/71	21 January	Letter from the representative of Libya to the Secretary-General
S/2019/126	9 February	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/324	18 April	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 152/205

S/2019/327	20 April	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/340	23 April	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/363	2 May	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/377	9 May	Letter from the representatives of Belgium, the Dominican Republic, France, Germany, Peru, Poland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/421	22 May	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/499	17 June	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/547	3 July	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/578	17 July	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/606	30 July	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/631	5 August	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/663	16 August	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/712	5 September	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/721	9 September	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/745	18 September	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/794	4 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/808	10 October	Letter from the representative of Libya to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/813	11 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

20-09564 153/205

S/2019/951	16 December	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/972	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya to the President of the Security Council

The situation in Mali

Meetings of the Council

```
8445 (16 January); 8497 (29 March); 8501 (3 April); 8547 (12 June); 8568 (28 June); 8607 (29 August); 8636 (8 October)
```

(see also part II, chapter 20.I)

Consultations of the whole

16 January; 8 October

Resolutions adopted

2480 (2019); 2484 (2019)

Presidential statements

S/PRST/2019/2

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali

Resolution 2100 (2013) Established

Resolution 2484 (2019) Mandate extended until 31 August 2020

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Mali

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/137	21 February	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/636	6 August	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali to the President of the Security Council

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/207	5 March	Resolution 2423 (2018)
S/2019/262	26 March	Resolution 2423 (2018)
S/2019/454	31 May	Resolution 2423 (2018)
S/2019/782	1 October	Resolution 2480 (2019)
S/2019/983	30 December	Resolution 2480 (2019)

20-09564 155/205

Communications		
S/2019/137	21 February	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/636	6 August	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) on Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/771	24 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/968	19 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2374 (2017) concerning Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1004	27 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Items relating to Ukraine

A. Letter dated 28 February 2014 from the Permanent Representative of Ukraine to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council*

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8516 (25 April)

Communications

~ / • • • • • • • •		
S/2019/54	16 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/180	22 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/264	22 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/274	27 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/276	27 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/332	16 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/334	18 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/335	18 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/342	24 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/358	29 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/361	1 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/368	2 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/375	8 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/422	22 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/439	17 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

^{*} S/2014/136.

20-09564 157/205

S/2019/510	20 June	Letter from the representative of the Netherlands to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/527	20 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/528	20 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/516	22 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/526	25 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/583	18 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/584	19 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/611	29 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/618	31 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/656	9 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/733	9 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/781	27 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/844	24 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/979	20 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2019/985	23 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

B. Letter dated 13 April 2014 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council*

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8461 (12 February); 8529 (20 May); 8575 (16 July)

Communications

S/2019/163

19 February

Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council

S/2019/408

17 May

Letter from the representative of the

General

Russian Federation to the Secretary-

20-09564 159/205

^{*} S/2014/264.

Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council*

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8450 (23 January); 8511 (12 April); 8581 (19 July); 8616 (12 September); 8639 (10 October)

Consultations of the whole

10 October

Resolutions adopted

2487 (2019)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia

Resolution 2366 (2017) Established

Resolution 2487 (2019) Mandate extended until 25 September 2020

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2019/265	26 March	Resolution 2435 (2018)
S/2019/530	27 June	Resolution 2435 (2018)
S/2019/780	1 October	Resolution 2435 (2018)
S/2019/988	26 December	Resolution 2366 (2017)
S/2019/1017	31 December	Resolution 1612 (2005)

Communication

General	S/2019/557	10 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General
---------	------------	---------	---

^{*} S/2016/53.

The situation in the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8452 (26 January); 8472 (26 February); 8476 (28 February); 8506 (10 April)

Consultations of the whole

14 May

Communications

S/2019/80	24 January	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/117	6 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/151	18 February	Letter from the representative of Cuba to the Secretary-General
S/2019/176	21 February	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/183	26 February	Letter from the representative of Peru to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/194	28 February	Letter from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/197	28 February	Letter from the representative of Colombia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/300	8 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/308	10 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 161/205

S/2019/345	25 April	Letter from the representative of Germany to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/360	1 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/641	6 August	Letter from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/765	20 September	Letter from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/792	3 October	Letter from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the President of the Security Council

Part III Other matters considered by the Security Council

Chapter 1

Annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly

Meetings of the Council

8597 (20 August)

Communications

S/2019/666 20 August Note by the President of the Security Council

Chapter 2

Items relating to Security Council documentation and working methods and procedure

A. Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council (\$\frac{8}{2017}/507)

Meetings of the Council in 2019

8539 (6 June)

Communications

S/2019/450	29 May	Letter from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General
S/2019/990	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/991	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/992	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/993	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/994	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/995	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/996	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2019/997	27 December	Note by the President of the Security Council

20-09564 163/205

B. General matters

Communications

S/2019/144	14 February	Letter from the representative of Finland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/411	17 May	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/582	19 July	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the President of the Security Council

Part IV

Report of the Military Staff Committee

I. Introduction

1. The present report of the Military Staff Committee covers the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019.

II. Background

2. The Military Staff Committee was established in accordance with Article 47 of the Charter of the United Nations and Security Council resolution 1 (1946). The Committee has a mandate to advise and assist the Security Council on all questions relating to the Council's military requirements for the maintenance of international peace and security, the employment and command of forces placed at its disposal, the regulation of armaments, and possible disarmament.

III. Summary of the activities of the Committee

- 3. The Committee functioned continuously under its revised draft statute and revised draft rules of procedure, contained in document S/115 of 1 August 1946, during the period under review. The Committee held a total of 27 meetings and discussed a total of 42 topics. During the reporting period, the Committee had planned to conduct two field missions to current United Nations peacekeeping operations.
- 4. Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council participated in 26 meetings. Representatives of Secretariat departments were invited to brief the Committee and contributed to discussions: the Department of Peace Operations on 31 topics, the Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs on 8 topics and the Department of Operational Support on 2 topics.
- 5. Current United Nations peacekeeping and special political missions were the focus of 27 meetings, and various thematic issues were discussed at 14 meetings (see appendix IV.A).
- 6. During the reporting period, the Committee planned and was prepared to conduct two field missions to current United Nations peacekeeping operations but had to postpone them owing to visa issues for the Committee members from the Russian delegation.
- 7. The Committee continued to announce all meetings and provisional agendas in the Journal of the United Nations and on its website (www.un.org/securitycouncil/subsidiary/msc), which is available in the six official languages of the United Nations and offers swift and easy access to the programme of work and current information on the Committee.
- 8. In accordance with paragraph 178 of General Assembly resolution 60/1 entitled "2005 World Summit Outcome", the Committee continued to consider its composition, mandate and working methods.
- 9. Military representatives of Equatorial Guinea and Kuwait have not yet been appointed to the Committee.
- 10. The Committee amended some of its working methods, for example, military representatives of the elected members began to take their seats at the start of meetings.
- 11. The Committee remained prepared to carry out the functions assigned to it under the terms of Article 47 of the Charter.

20-09564 165/205

Part V Matters brought to the attention of the Security Council but not discussed at meetings of the Council during the period covered

Chapter 1

Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question

S/2019/152	19 February	Identical letters from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/172	22 February	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/182	26 February	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/214	27 February	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/310	10 April	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/623	1 August	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/635	6 August	Identical letters from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/654	13 August	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/679	22 August	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/689	6 September	Identical letters from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 167/205

S/2019/766	21 September	Identical letters from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/814	11 October	Identical letters from the representative of Pakistan to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/860	31 October	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/944	12 December	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council

Communication concerning the Korean peninsula

S/2019/409

16 May

Letter from the representative of the
Democratic People's Republic of
Korea to the Secretary-General

Chapter 3

Communications concerning the letter dated 20 February 1958 from the representative of the Sudan to the Secretary-General

S/2019/3	3 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/77	22 January	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 4

Communication concerning the question of the Greater Tunb, Lesser Tunb and Abu Musa islands

S/2019/412 17 May Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning the situation relating to Nagorny Karabakh and relations between Armenia and Azerbaijan

S/2019/31	7 January	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/32	9 January	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/53	15 January	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/118	6 February	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/133	7 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/209	27 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/211	4 March	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/213	5 March	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/215	28 February	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/231	1 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/245	12 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/257	21 March	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/269	25 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/287	28 March	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/286	29 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/289	1 April	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/314	4 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/316	10 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/382	6 May	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General

20-09564 169/205

S/2019/389	13 May	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/406	15 May	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/420	20 May	Identical letters from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/464	4 June	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/478	10 June	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/551	5 July	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/553	8 July	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/581	16 July	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/657	9 August	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/669	19 August	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/709	27 August	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/718	6 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/762	20 September	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/798	4 October	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/810	10 October	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/828	15 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/866	6 November	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/882	11 November	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/894	18 November	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General

S/2019/908	26 November	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/931	5 December	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2019/989	24 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/1001	26 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/1014	30 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning the situation in Georgia

S/2019/22	8 January	Letter from the representative of Georgia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/442	29 May	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/484	12 June	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/640	7 August	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/658	15 August	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/700	30 August	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/701	30 August	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/726	9 September	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 171/205

S/2019/832	22 October	Identical letters from the
		representative of Georgia to the
		Secretary-General and the President
		of the Security Council

Communications concerning relations between Cameroon and Nigeria

S/2019/1012	20 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1013	27 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary- General

Chapter 8

Communication from the Chair of the Coordination Committee of Special Procedures

S/2019/357	30 April	Note verbale from the Permanent
		Mission of Germany to the President
		of the Security Council

Chapter 9

Communications concerning the Collective Security Treaty Organization

S/2019/506	17 June	Letter from the representative of Kyrgyzstan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/529	25 June	Letter from the representative of Kyrgyzstan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/604	26 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2019/864	4 November	Letter from the representative of Kyrgyzstan to the Secretary-General
S/2019/939	5 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2019/940	5 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General

Communications concerning the League of Arab States

S/2019/238	12 March	Letter from the representatives of Egypt and Romania to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/306	10 April	Letter from the representative of Tunisia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/504	18 June	Letter from the representative of Tunisia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/747	13 September	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/793	3 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/813	11 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/818	14 October	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/834	18 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/848	18 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/927	4 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

Chapter 11

Communications concerning relations between the Democratic People's Republic of Korea and the United States of America

S/2019/409	16 May	Letter from the representative of the
		Democratic People's Republic of
		Korea to the Secretary-General

20-09564 173/205

S/2019/466	6 June	Letter from the representative of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea to the Secretary-General
S/2019/548	3 July	Letter from the representative of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning relations between Djibouti and Eritrea

S/2019/154	18 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/627	2 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 13

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Israel

S/2019/62	18 January	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/168	20 February	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/241	15 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/288	2 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/292	4 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/330	22 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/573	16 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/714	6 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/716	7 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/836	23 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/907	26 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/1003	27 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Saudi Arabia

S/2019/423	22 May	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/428	23 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/487	13 June	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/489	13 June	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/494	14 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/534	25 June	Letter from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/571	15 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

20-09564 175/205

S/2019/758	18 September	Identical letters from the representative of Saudi Arabia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/785	2 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and the United States of America

S/2019/185	27 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/312	11 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/429	23 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/512	20 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/536	27 June	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the Secretary-General
S/2019/624	1 August	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/652	9 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/667	19 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/752	19 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2019/863	4 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/928	5 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning relations between Qatar and Bahrain, Egypt, the Islamic Republic of Iran, Saudi Arabia, the Syrian Arab Republic and the United Arab Emirates

S/2019/121	7 February	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/138	13 February	Identical letters from the representative of Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/158	19 February	Identical letters from the representative of Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/205	4 March	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/250	19 March	Identical letters from the representative of Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/317	12 April	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/518	24 June	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/569	15 July	Identical letters from the representative of Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/610	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Qatar to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

20-09564 177/205

S/2019/728	9 September	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/927	4 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

Communications from the Islamic Republic of Iran

S/2019/7	4 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/49	14 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/413	17 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/524	25 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/593	23 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2019/667	19 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/862	1 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/921	3 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/926	4 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2019/933	9 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2019/959	18 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

Appendices

I

Membership of the Security Council during the year 2019

Belgium

China

Côte d'Ivoire

Dominican Republic

Equatorial Guinea

France

Germany

Indonesia

Kuwait

Peru

Poland

Russian Federation

South Africa

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

United States of America

20-09564 179/205

II

Representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives accredited to the Security Council

The following representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives served on the Security Council in 2019:

Belgium**

Mr. Bruno Van der Pluijm¹

(Secretary-General of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Alexander De Croo²

(Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Finance and Development Cooperation)

Mr. Didier Reynders³

(Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Foreign Affairs and Defence)

Mr. Axel Kenes⁴

(Director General for Multilateral Affairs)

Mr. Marc Pecsteen de Buytswerve

Mrs. Karen Van Vlierberge

Mr. Jeroen Cooreman

Mr. Mathias Bogaert

Mrs. Delphine Delieux

Mr. Mathias Kende

Mr. Andrzej Bielecki

Ms. Valerie Boels

Mrs. Annelies Verstichel

Mr. Jean-François Brackman

Mr. Nicolas Fierens Gevaert

Mrs. Griet Seurs

Mr. Ewout Stoefs

Ms. Florinda Baleci

Ms. Hanne Carle

Mrs. Christine Cassiers

Ms. Caroline Pailhe

Ms. Priscilla de Schaetzen

Mrs. Anna Oosterlinck

China

Mr. Wang Yi⁵

(State Councillor and Minister for Foreign Affairs)

^{*} Term of office ended on 31 December 2019.

^{**} Term of office began on 1 January 2019.

- Mr. Zhang Jun
- Mr. Ma Zhaoxu⁶
- Mr. Wu Haitao
- Mr. Yao Shaojun
- Mr. Zhang Dianbin
- Mr. Cheng Lie
- Mr. Guo Jiakun
- Mr. Wu Jianjian
- Mr. Liu Yang

Côte d'Ivoire*

- Mr. Marcel Amon-Tanoh⁷
- (Minister for Foreign Affairs)
- Mr. Léon Houadja Kacou Adom
- Mr. Gbolié Désiré Wulfran Ipo
- Mr. Tiémoko Moriko
- Mr. Adjoumani Yao
- Mr. Ibrahima Touré
- Mr. Antonin Benjamin Biéké
- Mr. Virgile N'Cho Akiapo
- Mr. Abdoulaye Essy
- Mr. Michel Kouadjo Kouakou
- Mr. Emmanuel Fiégolo
- Mrs. Nanzéguéla Fofana Koné
- Mrs. Madina Saran Koné
- Mr. Damoua Guillaume Angora
- Mr. Check Ibrahim Bakayoko
- Mr. Isaac Bile-Hamilton
- Ms. Eva Niamke

Dominican Republic**

- Mr. Miguel Vargas Maldonado⁸ (Minister for Foreign Affairs)
- Mr. José Singer Weisinger
- Mr. José Manuel Trullols
- Mr. Josué Antinoe Fiallo
- Mr. José Blanco
- Ms. Berioska Morrison Gonzalez
- Ms. Joan Cedano

20-09564 181/205

- Mr. Wellington Bencosme
- Ms. Luz Andújar
- Mr. Napoleón Beras
- Ms. Mabel García
- Ms. Solange Blandino
- Ms. Nathalie Abreu
- Ms. Madiusca Batista
- Ms. Melanie Hidalgo
- Ms. Madeline Luna
- Ms. Cherybelle Gómez

Equatorial Guinea*

- Mr. Teodoro Obiang Nguema Mbasogo⁹
- (President)
- Mr. Simeon Oyono Esono Angue¹⁰
- (Minister for Foreign Affairs and Cooperation)
- Mr. Pedro Nguema Ndong¹¹
- (Secretary of State for Foreign Affairs)
- Mr. Anatolio Ndong Mba
- Mr. Job Obiang Esono Mbengono
- Ms. Victoriana Mbasogo Mangue
- Ms. Amparo Mele Colifa
- Mr. Narciso Sipaco Ribala
- Mr. Protasio Edu Edjang Nnanga
- Ms. Susana Edjang
- Mr. Arístides Mevian Miaga
- Mr. Victor Manuel Ele Ela
- Mr. Juan Mbomio Ndong Mangue
- Mr. Vincente Mba Asumu Abem
- Mr. Marcelino Sima Mangue
- Mr. Sergio Ela Mico
- Mr. Armando Ikaka Banganga
- Mr. Severo Mba Ondo Nzang
- Mr. Domingo Nsue Maye
- Ms. Estela Nsze Mansogo
- Ms. Esther Nchama Bico Mbasogo
- Ms. Marisa Niang Engonga
- Ms. Josefina Oyana Mbana Makina

183/205

Mr. Francisco Javier Toichoa Nduo

Ms. Sinforosa Nzang Obama

Mr. Domingo Mituy Alene

Ms. Beatriz Obama Mbengona

Ms. Isabel Avomo Sima

Mr. Marcial Edu Mbasogo

Ms. Inmaculada Avomo Esono Kiebiyene

Mr. Remos Ondo Angue

Mr. Juan de Dios Edjo Memba

France

Mr. Jean-Yves Le Drian¹²

(Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Jean-Baptiste Lemoyne¹³

(Minister of State attached to the Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Nicolas de Rivière

Mr. François Delattre

Ms. Anne Gueguen

Mr. Antoine Michon

Mrs. Sheraz Gasri

Mr. Samer Melki

Mr. Alexandre Diebolt

Germany**

Mr. Heiko Maas¹⁴

(Federal Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Andreas Michaelis¹⁵

(State Secretary of the Federal Foreign Office)

Mr. Walter Lidner¹⁶

(State Secretary of the Federal Foreign Office)

Ms. Antje Leendertse¹⁷

(State Secretary of the Federal Foreign Office)

Ms. Ursula von der Leyen¹⁸

(Federal Minister of Defence)

Ms. Michelle Müntefering¹⁹

(Minister of State of the Federal Foreign Office)

Mr. Niels Annen²⁰

(Minister of State of the Federal Foreign Office)

Mr. Christoph Heusgen

Mr. Juergen Schulz

Mr. Mathias Licharz

20-09564

- Ms. Kerstin Puerschel
- Mr. Andreas Glossner
- Ms. Karin Goebel

Indonesia**

Ms. Retno Lestari Priansari Marsudi²¹

(Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. A.M. Fachir²²

(Vice-Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Febrian Alphyanto Ruddyard²³

(Director General of Multilateral Cooperation)

- Mr. Dian Triansyah Djani
- Ms. Ina H. Krisnamurthi
- Mr. Muhsin Syihab
- Mr. Rolliansyah Soemirat
- Mrs. Kartika Handaruningrum
- Ms. Sahadatun Donatirin
- Mr. Rio Budi Rahmanto
- Mr. Pangeran Ibrani Situmorang
- Mr. Fulad

Kuwait*

Sheikh Sabah Khalid Al Hamad Al Sabah²⁴

(Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Foreign Affairs)

- Mr. Mansour Ayyad Alotaibi
- Mr. Bader Abdullah Almunayekh
- Mr. Talal Sulaiman Alfassam
- Mr. Tareq Mohammed Albanai
- Mr. Nawaf Abdullatif Alahmad
- Mr. Fawaz Abdullah Bourisly
- Ms. Jawaher E. Alsabah
- Mr. Jarrah Jaber Alahmad Alsabah
- Mr. Bashar Ali Alduwaisan
- Mr. Mohammad H.M.S. Alajmi
- Mr. Fahad M.E. Hajji Mohammad
- Mr. Abdullah Ahmed Alsharrah
- Mr. Bashar Abdullah Almowaizri
- Mr. Ibrahim Faisal Aldai
- Mr. Ali Abdullatif Alyahya

Mrs. Saba Masoud Alfuhaid

Ms. Sarah Saleh Alzouman

Ms. Tahani R. F. A. Alnaser

Mr. Abdulaziz A. M. A. Alajmi

Peru*

Mr. Néstor Popolizio Bardales²⁵ (Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Gustavo Meza-Cuadra Velásquez

Mr. Francisco Tenya Hasegawa

Mr. Luis Ugarelli

Mr. Paul Fernando Duclos Parodi

Mr. Enri Ciprian Prieto Tica

Mr. Glauco Javier Seoane Byrne

Ms. Verónika Bustamante Gómez

Mr. Walter Ronnie Habich Morales

Mr. Humberto Martín Velásquez Guevara

Mr. Ángel Valjean Horna Chicchón

Mrs. Sandra Luisana Rodríguez Sánchez

Mr. Luis Amadeo Solari Antola

Ms. Nora Desla Juniza Castillo Torres

Lieutenant General Walter Enrique Astudillo Chávez

General Fernando Ordoñez Velásquez

Colonel Luis Alberto Horacio Aparicio Zambrano

Commander Wilbert Vera Mendoza

Mr. Juan José Ruda Santolaria

Poland*

Mr. Jacek Czaputowicz²⁶

(Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Krzysztof Szczerski²⁷

(Secretary of State in the Chancellery)

Mr. Marcin Przydacz²⁸

(Undersecretary of State in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Michal Kurtyka²⁹

(Secretary of State in the Ministry of Environment)

Ms. Joanna Wronecka

Mr. Paweł Radomski

Mr. Mariusz Lewicki

Mr. Kamil Mielus

20-09564

Ms. Agata Duda-Płonka

Colonel Dariusz Kacperczyk

Lieutenant-Colonel Jarosław Oleśkiewicz

Mr. Jakub Chmielewski

Mr. Aleksander Iwanicki

Ms. Karolina Krupa

Ms. Joanna Lalak

Ms. Magdalena Skowrońska

Ms. Karolina Janiak

Ms. Karolina Krywulak

Mr. Władysław Manteuffel

Mr. Krzysztof Marcinek

Mr. Paweł Musiał

Ms. Bogna Ruminowicz

Mr. Tomasz Tokarski

Mr. Piotr Zawieja

Mr. Maciej Jamróz

Mr. Bartłomiej Wybacz

Ms. Katarzyna Zaworska-Furgała

Russian Federation

Mr. Sergey Lavrov³⁰

(Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Sergey Vershinin³¹

(Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Vassily A. Nebenzia

Mr. Dmitry A. Polyanskiy

Mr. Dmitry S. Chumakov

Mr. Gennady V. Kuzmin

Mr. Vladimir K. Safronkov

Mr. Mikhail D. Beznosenko

Mr. Stepan Y. Kuzmenkov

Mr. Alexandr V. Repkin

Mr. Evgeny Y. Varganov

Ms. Dina A. Gilmutdinova

Mr. Andrei. V. Grebenshchikov

Mr. Roman G. Kashayev

Mr. Alexander S. Popov

- Mr. Fedor K. Strzhizhovskiy
- Mr. Stanislav S. Aleksaev
- Mr. Alexey Boguslavskiy
- Mr. Ivan P. Khoroshev
- Mr. Vadim S. Kirpichenko
- Mr. Igor V. Kuzmin
- Mr. Ilya A. Kuznetsov
- Mr. Denis N. Lozinskiy
- Ms. Elena A. Melikbekyan
- Mr. Oleg O. Mikhaylov
- Mr. Dmitry I. Nekrasov
- Mr. Taras A. Pronin
- Mr. Maxim V. Biryukov
- Mr. Alexey V. Fatkin
- Mr. Vladimir Y. Gusarov
- Mr. Nikolay V. Khloponin
- Ms. Guzal M. Khusanova
- Mr. Vadim A. Sokolov
- Mr. Aleksandr N. Dorokhov
- Mr. Boris S. Lukshin
- Mr. Mikhail I. Shabaltas

South Africa*

Mrs. Naledi Pandor³²

(Minister for International Relations and Cooperation)

Ms. Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula³³

(Minister for Defence and Military Veterans)

Mr. Mxolisi Nkosi³⁴

(Deputy Director General)

Mr. Jerry Matthews Matjila

Mr. Xolisa Mabhongo

Mr. Marthinus van Schalkwyk

Ms. Kgaugelo Mogashoa

Mr. Thabo Michael Molefe

Mr. Lyle Davidson

Ms. Phumla Andy Makwabe

Ms. Sherina Saran

Mr. Inayet Ismail

20-09564 187/205

Ms. Johanna Elizabeth Marais

Mr. Saki Mpanyane

Ms. Harshana Bhaskar Goolab

Mr. Stephen Mahlabadishago Ntsoane

Mr. Martin Eric Sipho Ngundze

Mr. Joseph Edwin Haydn Davies

Mr. Sydney Muenda

Ms. Thabile Bhengu

Ms. Nichola Nakulunga Sabelo

Ms. Ayanda Bekwa

Ms. Meryl Michelle Diedricks

Ms. Zandile Bhengu

Ms. Thandekile Tshabalala

Brigadier General Mninimzi Sizane

Colonel Alex Bengashe Cecil Makhosi

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

Lord Tariq Mahmood Ahmad of Wimbledon³⁵

(Minister of State for the Commonwealth and the United Nations)

Sir Alain Duncan³⁶

(Minister of State for Europe and the Americas)

Ms. Karen Pierce

Mr. Jonathan Guy Allen

Mr. James Roscoe

Mr. Stephen Hickey

Ms. Ruth Andreyeva

Ms. Susan Dickson

Mrs. Rosemary Grieves

Mr. Timothy O'Brien

Mr. Charles Reeve

Mr. David Clay

Colonel Oliver James Fenton Nurton

Lieutenant Colonel Andrew Rupert Adrian Higgs

Ms. Amy Lois Townsend

Mr. Mark Power

Ms. Catherine Carr

Mr. Raj Kumar Ghose

Ms. Rebecca Rose

- Ms. Clelia Lucy Uhart
- Ms. Jessica Philips
- Mr. Colin McDonald
- Mr. Benjamin Roberts
- Ms. Asima Ghazi-Bouillon
- Ms. Alice Hyde
- Mr. David Kinna
- Ms. Cristal Downing
- Ms. Naureen Fink
- Ms. Amy Quantrill
- Mrs. Anna Knight
- Mrs. Nerys Cross Smith
- Ms. Caroline Vent
- Ms. Virginia Browning
- Mr. Alistair Robert Steven Kelsey
- Ms. Natalie Elizabeth Palmer
- Mr. Matthew Frederick Ronald Dawes
- Mr. Charles Oliver Campbell
- Ms. Leah Jane Gray
- Mr. Jonathan Michael Barbakoff
- Mr. Stacy John Weld-Blundell
- Mr. Samuel Thomas Grout-Smith
- Mr. Benjamin Henry Spells
- Ms. Hester Lucrece Helen Dawes
- Ms. Caroline Quinn
- Mr. Samuel Heath
- Mr. Charles Collins
- Ms. Allison Tang
- Mr. Mungo Woodifield
- Mr. Thomas Phipps
- Ms. Melina Lito
- Ms. Kelly White
- Mr. Nicholas Conway
- Ms. Matilda O'Kelly
- Mr. Philip Reed

20-09564 189/205

United States of America

Mr. Michael Pence³⁷

(Vice President)

Mr. Michael Pompeo³⁸

(Secretary of State)

Mr. David Hale³⁹

(Under Secretary of State for Political Affairs)

Ms. Andrea L. Thompson⁴⁰

(Under Secretary of State for Arms Control and International Security)

Mr. Elliott Abrams⁴¹

(Special Envoy for Venezuela)

Mrs. Kelly Craft

Mr. Jonathan R. Cohen

Ms. Kelley A. Eckels-Currie

Ms. Cherith Norman Chalet

Mr. Rodney Hunter

Mr. Mark A. Simonoff

Ms. Elaine French

Mr. Julian Simcock

Ms. Emily Pierce

Mr. Jason Greenblatt

Mr. Michael Barkin

Mr. Leslie Ordeman

Notes

- ¹ Participated in the 8627th meeting, on 27 September 2019.
- ² Participated in the 8626th meeting, on 25 September 2019.
- ³ Participated in the 8451st meeting, on 25 January 2019.
- ⁴ Participated in the 8514th meeting, on 23 April 2019.
- ⁵ Participated in the 8626th and 8627th meetings, on 25 and 26 September 2019.
- ⁶ Participated in the 8456th meeting, on 4 February 2019, in his capacity as Special Representative of President Xi Jinping.
- ⁷ Participated in the 8456th, 8497th and 8498th meetings, on 4 February and 29 March 2019.
- ⁸ Presided at the 8450th, 8451st, 8452nd meetings, on 23, 25 and 26 January, and participated in 8626th meeting, on the 25 of September 2019.
- ⁹ Presided at the 8456th meeting, on 4 February 2019.
- ¹⁰ Presided at the 8457th and 8473rd meetings, on 5 and 27 February 2019, and participated in the 8626th and 8627th meetings, on 25 and 26 September 2019.
- ¹¹ Participated in the 8514th meeting, on 23 April 2019.
- ¹² Presided at the 8496th, 8497th and 8498th meetings, on 28 and 29 March 2019, and participated in the 8627th meeting, on 26 September 2019.
- ¹³ Participated in the 8626th meeting, on 25 September 2019.
- Participated in the 8451st, 8497th, 8596th meetings, on 25 January, 29 March and 13 August 2019; and presided at the 8499th, 8500th, 8514th meetings, on 1, 2 and 23 April 2019.
- ¹⁵ Participated in the 8599th and 8600th meetings, on 20 August 2019.
- ¹⁶ Participated in the 8476th meeting, on 28 February 2019.
- ¹⁷ Participated in the 8648th meeting, on 28 October 2019.
- ¹⁸ Presided at the 8508th meeting, on 11 April 2019.
- ¹⁹ Participated in the 8649th meeting, on 29 October 2019.
- ²⁰ Participated in the 8534th and 8626th meetings, on 23 April and 25 September 2019.
- ²¹ Participated in the 8450th, 8451st, 8500th and 8627th meetings, on 23 and 25 January, 2 April and 26 September 2019 and presided at the 8521st, 8532nd and 8534th meetings, on 7, 22 and 23 May 2019.
- ²² Participated in the 8489th and 8496th meeting, on 26 and 28 March 2019.
- ²³ Participated in the 8624th meeting, on 20 September 2019.
- ²⁴ Participated in the 8451st, 8499th, 8500th and 8627th meetings, on 25 January, 1 and 2 April and 26 September 2019; and presided at the 8543rd, 8546th and 8548th meetings, on 11, 12 and 13 June 2019.
- ²⁵ Presided at the 8579th, 8581st and 8582nd meetings, on 18 and 19 July 2019.
- ²⁶ Participated in the 8499th and 8500th and 8627th meetings, on 1 and 2 April and 26 September 2019, and presided at the 8590th, 8591st, 8596th, 8599th and 8600th meetings, on 2, 13 and 20 August 2019.
- ²⁷ Presided at the 8604th meeting, on 27 August 2019.
- ²⁸ Participated in the 8626th meeting, on 25 September 2019.
- ²⁹ Participated in the 8451st meeting, on 25 January 2019.
- ³⁰ Presided at the 8626th and 8627th meetings, on 25 and 26 September 2019.
- ³¹ Participated in the 8535th meeting, on 28 May 2019, and presided at the 8628th meeting, on 30 September 2019.
- ³² Presided at the 8648th, 8649th and 8652nd meetings, on 28, 29 and 30 October 2019, and participated in the 8626th and 8627th meetings, on 25 and 26 September 2019.
- ³³ Participated in the 8498th meeting, on 29 March 2019, and presided at the 8649th and 8650th meetings, on 29 and 30 October 2019.
- ³⁴ Participated in the 8514th meeting, on 23 April 2019.
- ³⁵ Participated in the 8451st, 8497th and 8514th meetings, on 25 January, 29 March and 23 April 2019
- ³⁶ Participated in the 8452nd meeting, on 26 January 2019.
- ³⁷ Participated in the 8506th meeting, on 10 April 2019.
- ³⁸ Participated in the 8452nd and 8600th meetings, on 26 January and 20 August 2019.
- ³⁹ Participated in the 8497th meeting, on 29 March 2019.
- ⁴⁰ Participated in the 8500th meeting, on 2 April 2019.
- ⁴¹ Participated in the 8452nd and 8476th meetings, on 26 January and 28 February 2019.

20-09564 191/205

Ш

Presidents of the Security Council

The following representatives served as President of the Security Council in 2019.

Dominican Republic	
Mr. José Singer Weisinger	January ¹
Equatorial Guinea	
Mr. Anatolio Ndong Mba.	February ²
France	
Mr. François Delattre	March ³
Germany	
Mr. Christoph Heusgen	April ⁴
Indonesia	
Mr. Dian Triansyah Djani	May ⁵
Kuwait	
Mr. Mansour Ayyad Alotaibi	June ⁶
Peru	
Mr. Gustavo Meza-Cuadra Velásquez.	$July^7$
Poland	
Ms. Joanna Wronecka	August ⁸
Russian Federation	
Mr. Vassily A. Nebenzia	September
South Africa	
Mr. Jerry Matthews Matjila	October ¹⁰
United Kingdom	
Ms. Karen Pierce	November
United States	
Mrs. Kelly Craft	December

¹ Mr Miguel Vargas Maldonado, Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Dominican Republic, presided at the 8450th, 8451st and 8452nd meetings, on 23, 25 and 26 January 2019.

² Mr. Teodoro Obiang Nguema Mbasogo, President of the Republic of Equatorial Guinea, presided at the 8456th meeting, on 4 February 2019; and Mr. Simeon Oyono Esono Angue, Minister for Foreign Affairs and Cooperation, presided at the 8457th and 8473rd meetings, on 5 and 27 February 2019.

³ Mr. Jean-Yves Le Drian, Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs of France, presided at the 8496th, 8497th and 8498th meetings, on 28 and 29 March 2019.

⁴ Mr. Heiko Maas, Federal Minister for Foreign Affairs of Germany, presided at the 8499th, 8500th and 8514th meetings, on 1, 2 and 23 April 2019; and Ms. Ursula von der Leyen, Federal Minister of Defence, presided at the 8508th meeting, on 11 April 2019.

⁵ Ms. Retno Lestari Priansari Marsudi, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Indonesia, presided at the 8521st, 8532nd and 8534th meetings, on 7, 22 and 23 May 2019.

⁶ Sheikh Sabah Khalid Al Hamad Al Sabah, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Foreign Affairs of Kuwait, presided at the 8543rd, 8546th and 8548th meetings, on 11, 12 and 13 June 2019.

⁷ Mr. Néstor Popolizio Bardales, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Peru, presided at the 8579th, 8581st and 8582nd meetings, on 18 and 19 July 2019.

⁸ Mr. Jacek Czaputowicz, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Poland, presided at the 8590th, 8591st, 8596th, 8599th and 8600th meetings, on 2, 13 and 20 August 2019; and Mr. Krzysztof Szczerski, Secretary of State in the Chancellery, presided at the 8604th meeting on 27 August 2019.

⁹ Mr. Sergey Lavrov, Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation, presided at the 8626th and 8627th meetings, on 25 and 26 September 2019; and Mr. Sergey Vershinin, Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs, presided the 8628th meeting on 30 September 2019.

Mrs. Naledi Pandor, Minister for International Relations and Cooperation of South Africa, presided at the 8648th, 8649th and 8652nd meetings, on 28, 29 and 30 October 2019; and Ms. Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula, Minister for Defence and Military Veterans, presided at the 8649th and 8650th meetings, on 29 and 30 October 2019.

IV Military Staff Committee

A. Meetings of the Military Staff Committee

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants
1925	Sudan (United Nations Mission in South Sudan (UNMISS)) Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of	Committee members (China, France, Russian Federation, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and United States of America)	
		Military Staff Committee annual report 2018 (MS/3601)	Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa
1926	25 January	5 January The situation concerning Ma	Major General Hugh Van	Committee members
the Org Mis Rep	the Democratic Republic of the Congo (United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO))	Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa	
1927 8 February	,	Lieutenant General Carlos	Committee members	
	TI H M	Policy Framework	Loitey, Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany,
		The question concerning Haiti (United Nations Mission for Justice Support in Haiti (MINUJUSTH))	Mr. Luis Carrilho, Police Adviser, Police Division, Office of Rule of Law and Security Institutions, Department of Peace Operations	Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa
		Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Committee members

Note: Documents listed in appendix IV are on file with the Military Staff Committee.

20-09564 193/205

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants
1928	22 February	The situation concerning Western Sahara (United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO))	Major General Hugh Van Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany,
		The situation in Abyei (United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA))	Major General Hugh Van Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Indonesia and South Africa
		Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Committee members
1929 8 March	Usage of modern technology in peacekeeping operations	Mr. Eduardo Artigas, Chief, Business Relationship Management Section, Office of Information and Communications Technology, Department of Operational Support	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa	
		Logistics support for peacekeeping operations	Mr. David Zehler, Operations Officer, Office of the Assistant Secretary- General for Supply Chain Management, Department of Operational Support	
		Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Committee members
1930	22 March	The situation in Somalia	Mr. Graham Maitland,	Committee members
		(United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNSOM) and African Union Mission in Somalia (AMISOM))	Director, East Africa Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland
		The situation in the Central Africa region (United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa)	Mr. Michael Kingsley- Nyinah, Director, Central and Southern Africa Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs	and South Africa
		Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Committee members

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants	
1931	5 April	The situation in the Middle East (United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF) and United Nations Truce Supervision Organization (UNTSO))	Lieutenant General Carlos Loitey, Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa	
		Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee		
1932	18 April	The situation in Iraq (United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI))	Mr. Darko Mocibob, Deputy Director, Middle East Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany,	
		The situation in Yemen (United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA))	Mr. Darko Mocibob, Deputy Director, Middle East Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs	Poland and South Africa	
1933 3 May	3 May		Major General Hugh Van	Committee members	
		(United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali (MINUSMA))	ed Nations dimensional rated Stabilization on in Mali Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations Military elected to Security Câte d'I		
1934	16 May	6 May Terrorism as a threat to international peace and security	Ms. Sevil Alirzayeva, Chief of the Office of the Under- Secretary-General for Counter-Terrorism	Committee members	
				Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium,	
		The situation in Darfur (African Union-United Nations Hybrid Operation in Darfur (UNAMID)	Major General Hugh Van Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Côte d'Ivoire, Germany, Indonesia and Peru	
1935	31 May	(United Nations I Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP))	Major General Hugh Van Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Committee members	
				Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Indonesia and Poland	

20-09564 195/205

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants	
1936	14 June	The situation in Lebanon	Brigadier General El Hadji	Committee members	
		(United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL) and UNTSO)	Babacar Faye, Chief of Staff, Office of Military Affairs, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa	
1937	28 June	The situation in Libya	Mr. Jack Christofides,	Committee members	
		(United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL))	Director of the North Africa Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Dominican Republic, Germany, Peru and Poland	
		Intelligence in the context of peacekeeping operations	Mr. Guillaume Darmé, Chief Peacekeeping- Intelligence Coordination Team, Office of the Under- Secretary-General for Peace Operations, Department of Peace Operations		
1938	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Committee members			
			Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the	
		United Nations counter- improvised explosive devices efforts	Ms. Sonia Mrabet, Officer- in-Charge of the United Nations Mine Action Service, Department of Peace Operations	Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Dominican Republic and Germany	
1939	26 July	The situation in Colombia	Mr. Jared Kotler, Team	Committee members	
		(United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia)	leader of the Colombia team, Americas Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs – Department of Peace Operations	and Security Council: Belgium	
1940	9 August	The situation in	Mr. Brian Vitunic, Senior	Committee members	
Afghanistan (United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA))		Political Affairs Officer, Afghanistan Team, Asia Pacific Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs – Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Germany, Indonesia and Poland		

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants
		The situation concerning Western Sahara (United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO))	Lieutenant General Carlos Loitey, Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	
1941	23 August	Peacekeeping Capability	Major General Hugh Van	Committee members
		Readiness System	Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Dominican Republic,
		The question concerning Haiti (MINUJUSTH)	Mr. William P. Gardner, Haiti Team Leader, Americas Division, Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs – Department of Peace Operations	Germany and Poland
1942	6 September	Field trip	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Committee members
1943	20 September	The situation in Cyprus	Lieutenant General Carlos	Committee members
		(UNFICYP)	Loitey, Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Germany, Indonesia, Peru, Poland and South Africa
1944	4 October	The situation concerning	Brigadier General El Hadji	Committee members
	the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO)	Babacar Faye, Chief of Staff, Office of Military Affairs, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium, Côte d'Ivoire, Dominican	
		Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Republic, Germany, Peru, Poland and South Africa

20-09564 197/205

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants	
1945	18 October	Military Staff Committee mission	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Belgium,	
		The situation in the Central African Republic (United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA))	Major General Hugh Van Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Côte d'Ivoire, Dominican Republic, Germany, Indonesia, Peru and Poland	
		The situation in Abyei (United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei)	Major General Hugh Van Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations		
1946	946 1 November The situation in the Mic East (UNDOF and UNTSO)		Lieutenant General Carlos Loitey, Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Bolivia (Plurinational State of),	
		Military Staff Committee mission to Mali	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Ethiopia, Kazakhstan, Netherlands, Peru, Poland and Sweden	
1947	, e		Committee members		
	Kashmir (United Nations Military Observer Group in India and Pakistan (UNMOGIP))	Roosen, Deputy Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Bolivia (Plurinational State of),		
		Military Staff Committee working methods and procedures (MS/2018/68)	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Ethiopia, Kazakhstan, Netherlands, Poland and Sweden	
1948	27 November	The situation in South Sudan (UNMISS)	Lieutenant General Dennis Gyllensporre, Force Commander, MINUSMA	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the	
Threat assessment in Peacekeeping Operations Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secreta and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee		Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer,	Security Council: Côte d'Ivoire, Netherlands and Sweden		

Meeting	Date	Subject	Briefers	Participants
1949	13 December	The situation in Somalia (UNSOM)	Lieutenant General Carlos Loitey, Military Adviser for Peacekeeping Operations, Department of Peace Operations	Committee members Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Côte d'Ivoire, Ethiopia,
		Adoption of the draft programme of work of the Military Staff Committee for 2020 (MS/3666, MS/2019/85)	Colonel (retired) Vadim Pivovar, Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer, Military Staff Committee	Kazakhstan, Netherlands, Peru, Poland and Sweden
1950 27 December End-of-year assessment for 2019 and projections for 2020	27 December	-	Brigadier General El Hadji	Committee members
	Babacar Faye, Chief of Staff, Office of Military Affairs, Department of Peace Operations	Military representatives of elected members of the Security Council: Bolivia (Plurinational State of), Côte d'Ivoire, Kazakhstan, Netherlands, Peru and Sweden		
				Newly elected members of the Security Council participating as observers: Belgium, Germany, Indonesia and South Africa

20-09564 199/205

B. Representatives who served on the Military Staff Committee

Delegation	Period of service
China	
Major General Bo Hua, Head of Delegation	Since 5 October 2017
Senior Colonel Min Feng, Army Representative	Since 25 March 2017
Senior Captain Zhiyong Zhao, Navy Representative	Since 25 July 2017 to 30 September 2019
Senior Colonel Wei Lin, Air Force Representative	Since 10 March 2018
Senior Colonel Jiali Zhang, Deputy Air Force Representative	Since 28 October 2017
Colonel Guoxi Gong, Deputy Army Representative	Since 20 July 2014
Colonel Zhaohua Yu, Assistant to the Head of Delegation	Since 10 December 2015
Colonel Qin Liang, Assistant to the Head of Delegation	Since 10 September 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Xian Zhu, Assistant to the Head of Delegation	Since 25 December 2016 to 29 April 2019
France	
Brigadier General Thierry Lion, Head of Delegation	Since 1 August 2016 to 15 August 2019
Brigadier General Roland Margueritte, Head of Delegation	Since 16 August 2019
Colonel Vincent de Kytspotter, Military Adviser	Since 1 August 2016 to 18 July 2019
Colonel Richard Decombe, Military Adviser	Since 19 July 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Messaoud Merah, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 August 2018
Major Nadia Riffi, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 August 2018
Russian Federation	
Rear Admiral Evgeny Senkin, Head of Delegation	Since 5 July 2013
Colonel Vladimir Skorikov, Deputy Representative	Since 9 September 2016
Colonel Pavel Kuznetsov, Chief of Secretariat	Since 4 December 2015
Colonel Vladimir Akopov, Assistant Representative	Since 3 June 2018
Lieutenant Colonel Maxim Dudzenko, Assistant Representative	Since 19 February 2016 to 5 September 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Aleksandr Mikhailov, Assistant Representative	Since 12 February 2016
Major Alexey Fomichev, Assistant Representative	Since 6 September 2019

Delegation	Period of service
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	
Air Vice-Marshal Gavin Parker, Head of Delegation	Since 1 September 2017
Group Captain Tim O'Brien, Military Adviser	Since 31 July 2016 to 31 April 2019
Colonel Oliver Nurton, Military Adviser	Since 1 March 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Andrew Higgs, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 4 June 2018
United States of America	
Lieutenant General Richard Clark, Head of Delegation	Since 1 August 2017 to 31 January 2019
Lieutenant General David W. Allvin, Head of Delegation	Since 1 February 2019
Major General David W. Allvin, Vice-Head of Delegation	Since 1 September 2018 to 31 January 2019
Major General Glen VanHerck, Vice-Head of Delegation	Since 1 July 2017 to 31 August 2018
Rear Admiral Daryl L. Caudle, Vice-Head of Delegation	Since 1 September 2018
Major General Hubert Hegtvedt, Deputy Head of Delegation	Since 1 July 2017
Colonel Jonathan Neumann, Military Adviser	Since 1 August 2017 to 31 May 2019
Colonel Justin W. Sapp, Military Adviser	Since 1 June 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Brian Dunn, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 August 2016 to 30 July 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Mark Pemberton, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 July 2018
Lieutenant Colonel Christopher Kuzio, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 July 2016 to 31 June 2019
Lieutenant Colonel Glenn J. Sadowski, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 January 2007
Commander David Mrosek, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 September 2018
Lieutenant Commander Sean Miller, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 July 2019
Major David Barrett, Deputy Military Adviser	Since 1 July 2019

20-09564 201/205

C. Chairs of the meetings of the Military Staff Committee

Meeting	Date	Chair	Delegation
1925	11 January	Air Vice-Marshal Gavin Parker	United Kingdom
1926	25 January	Group Captain Tim O'Brien	United Kingdom
1927	8 February	Colonel Jonathan Neumann	United States
1928	22 February	Major General Hubert Hegtvedt	United States
1929	8 March	Major General Bo Hua	China
1930	22 March	Senior Colonel Min Feng	China
1931	5 April	Brigadier General Thierry Lion	France
1932	18 April	Colonel Vincent de Kytspotter	France
1933	3 May	Rear Admiral Evgeny Senkin	Russian Federation
1934	16 May	Rear Admiral Evgeny Senkin	Russian Federation
1935	31 May	Rear Admiral Evgeny Senkin	Russian Federation
1936	14 June	Group Captain Tim O'Brien	United Kingdom
1937	28 June	Lieutenant-Colonel Andrew Higgs	United Kingdom
1938	16 July	Colonel Justin W. Sapp	United States
1939	26 July	Colonel Justin W. Sapp	United States
1940	9 August	Major General Bo Hua	China
1941	23 August	Major General Bo Hua	China
1942	6 September	Brigadier General Roland Margueritte	France
1943	20 September	Brigadier General Roland Margueritte	France
1944	4 October	Rear Admiral Evgeny Senkin	Russian Federation
1945	18 October	Rear Admiral Evgeny Senkin	Russian Federation
1946	1 November	Colonel Oliver Nurton	United Kingdom
1947	13 November	Lieutenant-Colonel Andrew Higgs	United Kingdom
1948	27 November	Colonel Oliver Nurton	United Kingdom
1949	13 December	Colonel Justin W. Sapp	United States
1950	27 December	Colonel Justin W. Sapp	United States

D. Correspondence sent by the Chair of the Military Staff Committee

Document number	Date	Sent to	Contents
MS/2019/01	11 January	President of the Security Council (Dominican Republic)	Transmitting the annual report of the Military Staff Committee containing an account of its activities from 1 January to 31 December 2018 (MS/3601)
MS/2019/02	11 January	Secretary-General	Transmitting the annual report of the Military Staff Committee containing an account of its activities from 1 January to 31 December 2018 (MS/3601)
MS/2019/03	8 February	Secretary-General	Informing the Secretary-General of the forthcoming mission of the Committee to the Middle East (United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF)) and United Nations Truce Supervision Organization (UNTSO)), Uganda (Regional Service Centre in Entebbe, Uganda (RSCE)) and requesting assistance with Secretariat support for the Committee
MS/2019/10	22 February	Secretary-General	Informing the Secretary-General of the terms of reference for the forthcoming mission of the Committee to UNDOF, UNTSO and RSCE and requesting assistance with Secretariat support for the Committee
MS/2019/21	5 April	Secretary-General	Informing the Secretary-General of the postponement of the mission of the Committee to UNDOF, UNTSO and RSCE (MS/2019/03, MS/2019/10 and EOSG-2019-01693)
MS/2019/22	5 April	President of the Security Council (Germany)	Informing the President of the Security Council of the postponement of the mission of the Committee to UNDOF, UNTSO and RSCE (MS/2019/03, MS/2019/10 and EOSG- 2019-01693)
MS/2019/23	5 April	Secretary-General	Invitation to address the Committee at the level of Chiefs of Staff on 10 July 2019
MS/2019/27	18 April	Mr. Vladimir Voronkov, Under- Secretary-General, United Nations Counter-Terrorism Office	Invitation to address the Committee
MS/2019/43	14 June	Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations	Invitation to address the Committee

20-09564 203/205

Report of the Security Council to the General Assembly for 2019

Document number	Date	Sent to	Contents
MS/2019/64	25 September	Secretary-General	Informing the Secretary-General of the forthcoming mission of the Committee to MINUSCA and MINURSO and requesting assistance with Secretariat support for the Committee
MS/2019/68	18 October	Secretary-General	Informing the Secretary-General of the postponement of the mission of the Committee to MINUSCA and MINURSO (MS/2019/64)
MS/2019/69	18 October	President of the Security Council (South Africa)	Informing the President of the Security Council of the postponement of the mission of the Committee to MINUSCA and MINURSO (MS/2018/74, MS/3600)
MS/2019/75	1 November	Secretary-General	Rotation of the Principal Secretary and Liaison Officer of the Committee
MS/2019/86	13 December	President of the Security Council (United States of America)	Transmitting the Committee's provisional program of work for 2020 (MS/3666 dated 13 December 2019) and Note by the Chairman of the Committee (MS/2019/85 dated 13 December 2019)
MS/2019/87	13 December	Secretary-General	Transmitting the Committee's provisional program of work for 2020 (MS/3666 dated 13 December 2019) and Note by the Chairman of the Committee (MS/2019/85 dated 13 December 2019)

E. Correspondence received by the Chair of the Military Staff Committee

Document number	Date	Received from	Contents
MS/2019/09	10 January	Permanent Mission of the Dominican Republic	Credentials letter (ref.: MS/2018/71)
MS/2019/41	19 June	Permanent Mission of the Dominican Republic	Credentials letter (ref.: MPRD-ONU-NY-0808-2019)
MS/2019/42	13 June	Permanent Mission of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland	Credentials letter (ref.: 132/19)
MS/2019/48	15 June	United States Mission to the United Nations	Credentials letter (ref.: MSC-001-2019)
MS/2019/49	15 June	Permanent Mission of Germany	Credentials letter (ref.: 390/2019)
MS/2019/50	17 June	United States Mission to the United Nations	Credentials letter (ref.: MSC-003-2019)
MS/2019/51	18 June	Permanent Mission of France	Credentials letter (ref.: 262/ARM/DGRIS/RMD/ONU/NP)
MS/2019/76	3 October	Permanent Mission of Viet Nam	Credentials letter (ref.: CH2019/205)
MS/2019/77	30 October	Permanent Mission of Estonia	Credentials letter (ref.: 19.1-1/987)
MS/2019/78	31 October	Permanent Mission of Indonesia	Credentials letter (ref.: 423/POL-802/X/19)
MS/2019/79	31 October	Permanent Mission of Niger	Credentials letter (ref.: 0991 MPN/CBH/rr)
MS/2019/80	13 November	Permanent Mission of Indonesia	Credentials letter (ref.: S/122/PM/202/XI/2019)
MS/2019/88	20 December	Permanent Mission of Tunisia	Credentials letter (ref.: 715)

20-09564 (E) 200720

20-09564 205/205